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Trajectory with a

Purpose
Company Overview



Full-Suite B2B
Marketing Company 

We are your growth
accelerator!

Story By Design
We are story tellers who 
move brands forward.

Excellence By Design
We creatively add meaning 
to brands.

Culture By Design
We bring purpose and passion 
to create lasting impact.

13+ 
Years in B2B
Marketing

65+ 
Creative
Problem Solvers 

150+ 
Referenceable
Customers
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We are a full-suite B2B marketing company serving as the "Growth Accelerator" for 
our clients. We specialize in branding, marketing, design, workshops, and presentation 
services. With 150+ clients, we deliver strategic solutions that drive measurable 
outcomes. Led by design thinking, we have built solutions and framework to elevate 
their brands, engage the right audiences, and achieve sustainable success.

20%
Weird

80%
Creative

100%
Referenced

Toss The Coin Ltd Annual Report 2024 - 2507



Our Capabilities

Full-Suite 
Marketing

Strategy, user experience, 
branding, content, 
performance, demand 
generation

Driving consistent 
demand generation 
through high-value 
content marketing

On-Demand
CMO 

Impactful 
storytelling & visual 
communication

Crafted by 
Storytellers

AI-infused workflows, 
marketing frameworks, 
centralized for 
efficiencies

Delivering at 
Speed & Scale

Design
Studio

Content
Studio

Brand
Studio

Strategy
Studio

AI in Marketing
Studio

Performance
Studio

Growth
Marketing

Studio

Toss The Coin Ltd Annual Report 2024 - 2508



Performance
Trajectory Proven by

Performance Snapshot 2024-25



Financial Highlights 2024-25

EBITDA
EBITDA Growth 

22%

Revenue Growth 

78%
Operational Revenue

 FY24  ₹ 4.86 Cr 

 ₹ 8.65 Cr FY25

 FY24  ₹ 1.54 Cr 
 ₹ 1.87 Cr FY25
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Financial Highlights 2024-25

Earnings per Share (EPS)

EPS Growth

3%

PAT Growth 

15%
Profit After Tax

 FY24  ₹ 1.10 Cr 

 ₹ 1.26 Cr FY25

 FY24  ₹ 7.93 Cr 

 ₹ 8.17 Cr FY25
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Financial Highlights 
2024-25

Abridged Audited Profit and Loss Account

Particulars As on 31 Mar 2025 As on 31 Mar 2024

Income from Operations 884.22 495.53

Expenses (715.94) (348.64)

Profit before Tax 168.28 146.89

Tax Expenses (42.77) (37.04)

Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations 125.51 109.85

Profit(Loss) for the Period 125.51 109.85

Earnings Per Share 8.17 7.93

Abridged Audited Balance Sheet

Particulars As on 31 Mar 2025 As on 31 Mar 2024

Equities & Liabilities

Share Holder Funds 1298.31 445.85

Non-Current Liabilities 14.30 6.40

Current Liabilities 110.07 63.22

Total 1422.68 515.47

Assets

Non-Current Assets 223.21 46.94

Current Assets 1199.47 468.53

Total 1422.68 515.47

Cashflow Statement

Particulars As on 31 Mar 2025 As on 31 Mar 2024

Net cashflow from operating activities

Net cashflow from investing activities (478.12) 98.10

14.70 77.60

Net cashflow from financing activities 726.95 (25.20)

Net increase in cash & cash equivalents 263.53 150.50

Cash & Cash equivalents at beginning of period 291.70 141.20

555.23 291.70Cash & Cash equivalents at end of period
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Chairman’s  Letter 
Dear shareholders,

Every bold journey begins with a toss, a spark of intent, courage, and belief turned into action. When we 
started Toss The Coin, the name was never about randomness. It was about choosing action over 
hesitation, creativity over convention, and purpose over paralysis. The coin we tossed each day did not 
land by chance. It landed on purpose.

In FY 2024–25, that toss turned into something far more powerful. 

Our listing on the Bombay Stock Exchange was not just a 
milestone. It was a signal. A signal that we are ready to scale with 
discipline and to grow with intention. The visibility and credibility 
that followed have deepened client trust, led to longer-term 
partnerships, and positioned us as a serious player in the B2B 
marketing space.

We closed the year with ₹8.65 crores in revenue, reflecting a 78% 
growth over the previous year. More importantly, we stayed true to 
our creative core. We built and scaled our flagship CMO services, 
deepened global client relationships, and launched proprietary AI 
tools such as Kathai and etch. Our AI initiative are designed to 
enhance, not replace, human creativity.

But instinct alone cannot scale. Hustle needs a backbone. That was 
the inflection point we reached this year, and it is shaping our 
roadmap ahead.

We have started building the foundations to balance the very 
opposites we once thought could not coexist.

In FY 2025–26, we will continue to invest in balancing these 
opposites such as creativity with compliance, speed with stability 
freedom with frameworks, instinct with structure.

We are not replacing our edge. We are sharpening it, with systems 
that make it sustainable.

It became our trajectory.

Our key priorities for
FY 2025–26 include:
• Doubling down on the U.S. 

market

• Strengthening operations  
across HR, IT, Infrastructure, 
and Compliance to support 
a larger, more resilient 
organization

• Deepening our investments in 
intelligent automation, while 
growing leadership capacity 
across functions

• Our aim is not to trade 
creativity for structure, but to 
ensure both coexist. This 
balance allows us to continue 
delivering bold work with 
consistency and credibility. 

Thank you to our employees, clients, 
partners, and most importantly, to you, 
our shareholders, for standing by us. 

Jayan Narayanan
Chairman & Managing Director 
Toss The Coin Limited 

We are in
trajectory mode...
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Message from CFO  
Dear shareholders,

This is not by a random chance but by the 
bold strides and slick moves we executed in FY 
2024-25. Our years of excellent work, 
referenceable clients and the ‘purist’ 
approach to marketing has become our 
launching pad.
We closed FY 2024–25 with ₹8.65 crores in 
revenue, marking a 78% year-on-year growth 
and strengthening our EBITDA and PAT 
margins. But the real story lies beyond the 
numbers, in the kind of work we delivered, the 
strategic clients we partnered with, and the 
capabilities we built along the way.  All of these 
along with the visibility we gained on account 
of listing helped propel us to a trajectory. 
Our focus in 2024-25 was twofold: 
• To elevate our strategic-offerings through 

long-term CMO partnerships 
• To embrace artificial intelligence to 

automate, optimize, and complement our 
creativity 

Today, our CMO services alone contribute to 
more than 60% of total revenue with over 90% 
of it coming from retainers, giving us the 
predictability every scaling company needs. 
This is a testament to the clarity and 
execution strength of our vision. 
We started investing in AI to make our delivery 
sharper and more repeatable. From 
rebranding institutions to powering GTM 
strategies, we proved that creative thinking 
and operational excellence are not 
contradictions, they are partners. 
We also brought in seasoned leadership 
across AI, product development, marketing 
strategy, and operations. These hires are 
already making a visible impact and will be 
key to our next phase of growth.
As we step into FY 2025–26, our momentum 
continues with deeper investments in AI-led 
marketing, long-term retainer partnerships, 
and a stronger presence in the US. 

The toss has now become our trajectory. 

We have already set the groundwork 
with better processes, client-specific 
playbooks, and more predictable 
delivery models. But this year, we will 
double down:

• Scale our Centre of Marketing Expertise model 
into a fully structured BOT offering

• Build automation frameworks across client 
workstreams

• Strengthen project and account 
management to match our creative pace

• Deepen our US presence with on-ground 
client support and senior leadership connects

The speed gave us visibility. The steadiness will 
give us durability. Our momentum is now being 
matched with muscle so we can scale 
responsibly, creatively, and consistently.

To our clients, team members, partners, and 
shareholders, thank you for betting on our story. 
We are just getting started.

Reshma Budhia 
CFO 
Toss The Coin Limited 

Now comes the 
steadiness and 
balance.
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Trajectory Driven by

Hearts & Minds
People, Culture and Values



Where the Unconventional 
Meets the Exceptional
At Toss The Coin, we don’t just build brands. We build culture. And that culture starts with our 
people. Our team is a dynamic mix of strategists, designers, creators, analysts, and storytellers, 
each with their own unique flair. We don’t do cookie-cutter work; we challenge expectations, 
push boundaries, and always have fun while doing it. Whether you're in the midst of a pitch war 
room or accidentally muted during a team roast, one thing is clear: this is a place that 
celebrates individuality and creativity.

We believe in bringing your whole self to 
work—quirks, chaos, caffeine habits, and all. 

Collaboration is at our core. Here, titles take 
a backseat to ideas. Everyone has a voice, 
and every voice matters.

We embrace diverse perspectives, engage 
in honest conversations, and leave the 
pretentiousness at the door.

Learning is embedded in everything we do. 
From feedback loops to team swaps to 
candid brainstorms, we’re always evolving 
together.

Whether you’re working on fast-paced client 
projects or diving deep into strategy, Toss 
The Coin offers the freedom to stretch your 
skills and explore new ideas.

Want to try something different? We say 
“yes” before you’ve even finished your 
sentence.

At Toss The Coin, our culture is rooted in one 
simple truth: the best work comes from 
people who are free to be themselves. We 
embrace the unconventional because it’s 
where the most original ideas are born. We 
celebrate each other, especially when the 
pressure’s on, turning even the most chaotic 
deadlines into team wins. And we believe in 
giving and receiving honest, ego-free 
feedback to grow together.

The People Make the Place Our Culture Code
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we are an army
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What does it mean to be a
woman-first organization 

Commitment to Gender Equality

Leadership Development

Diverse Perspectives

Supportive Work Environment

Positive Social Impact

We believe in creating a level playing field where
women have equal opportunities to succeed. Our
hiring practices are designed to address gender
disparities and ensure that women are represented
at all levels of our organization.

We recognize that diverse teams drive innovation 
and better decision-making. By prioritizing the hiring 
of women, we bring a wide range of experiences, 
insights, and approaches to our work, leading to 
more creative and effective solutions.

We actively invest in the growth and development of 
women leaders within our organization. By offering 
targeted training and career advancement 
opportunities, we ensure that women can rise to 
leadership positions and shape the future of our 
company.

We are committed to fostering a workplace culture 
that empowers women. From mentorship programs 
to flexible working arrangements, we provide the 
support women need to thrive both professionally 
and personally.

We understand that empowering women in the 
workplace has a ripple effect on society. By being a 
woman-first organization, we contribute to broader 
social change, promoting equality and inspiring 
other companies to follow suit.
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Utopia is a way of life at Toss The Coin. 
It consists of 10 touchstones that guide our 
actions, decision-making, and interactions. 
They influence how we work together, treat 
our customers, and approach challenges. 

Respect
Beyond simply being polite, 
this cornerstone value leads 
us to treat everyone with 
dignity and worth—no 
matter their background, 
position, or opinions.

Empowerment
We hold space for everyone 
to build autonomy, inspire 
commitment, grow in 
confidence, and cultivate 
original thought, building 
one redoubtable team.

Trust
This value helps us grow, by 
nurturing positive 
relationships at all levels, 
leading to a culture of 
honesty, psychological 
safety, and mutual respect.

Collaboration
Working cohesively as a 
team to achieve innovative 
results, we foster team 
bonding, promote a sense 
of achievement, and nurture 
learning and development.
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Stewardship
This leadership trait helps us serve, 
putting the needs of our team first, 
helping them develop and perform 
better at every task they undertake.

Storytelling
This is an essential leadership 
value that shapes perceptions, 
aligns teams, inspires confidence, 
and drives change.

Safe Environment
Bringing people together as one 
cohesive team, we help everyone 
feel a sense of belonging, 
connection, and shared purpose.

Courage
Taking calculated business risks, 
we stand up against discrimination 
and say no to anything that might 
go against our convictions.

Compassion
We actively understand and 
empathize with everyone’s 
experiences and challenges, without 
any judgement or assumption.

Creativity
We find new ways of thinking, 
learning, and doing while 
encouraging calculated risk-taking 
and experimentation. 
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Trajectory Accelerating into

The Future
Road Ahead 2025-26



Industry
Trends
Relevance and Resilience
Define B2B Marketing in
2025 & Beyond

“Geopolitical risk, supply-chain
disruptions and rising costs...
impact people’s ability to plan
ahead pretty significantly.”

—Yuval Atsmon
McKinsey & Company, 2025 (WSJ)

B2B procurement, specifically technology procurement has been tending towards being cautious and 
fragmented, decision timelines becoming more non-linear, involving more stakeholders, and 
necessitating higher justification for every investment. According to INVERTO (a BCG company), 55% of 
organizations are delaying or restructuring tech procurement due to cost pressures and financial 
instability, with 87% reassessing supplier relationships for long-term resilience. And, as buyers move back 
and forth between sales stages,  seeking reassurance and information, brands need to evolve to engage 
a varied set of decision-makers with consistent messaging across diverse touchpoints. 

The implication for vendors is quite clear; be prepared to not just sell, but also stay visible, consistent, and 
credible across longer, non-linear sales cycles. The brand must be omnipresent, coherent, consistent, and 
ready with high-value content that can be rapidly disseminated in multiple formats. 
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Digital Dominance and
Buyer-Led Journeys

Buyers are conducting more independent 
research than ever before, often forming a 
shortlist of solutions before even engaging 
with a sales team. Companies that optimize 
their digital presence across the full 
customer journey—from discovery to 
decision—are seeing dramatically improved 
results. Mobile continues to lead the way, 
with 70% of B2B search queries now made on 
smartphones, up from 60% in 2023. This 
makes mobile optimization non-negotiable: 
every touchpoint, from website experience to 
email rendering, must function seamlessly on 
smaller screens. 

Strategic Content Marketing:
Quality over Quantity

B2B buyers are no longer swayed by sheer 
volume of content—they expect specificity, 
depth, and value. The emphasis is shifting 
to comprehensive, solution-oriented 
content that addresses clear pain points. 
Generic thought leadership is being 
replaced by in-depth guides, use-case 
explainers, and technical deep-dives that 
cater to each stage of the decision-making 
process. Notably, organic search drives 53% 
of all B2B website traffic, and 61% of 
decision-makers begin the buying process 
with a generic (non-branded) query. SEO 
continues to underpin content visibility, but 
technical SEO now plays a starring role. 

Social media is no longer about being 
everywhere—it’s about being where it 
matters, with efforts being concentrated on 
the platforms that directly influence buyer 
behavior. LinkedIn remains the cornerstone, 
generating 80% of all B2B social media 
leads and seeing a 25% year-over-year 
increase in engagement.

Video, once confined to awareness 
campaigns, is now integral at every stage 
of the funnel. On average, B2B buyers watch 
seven videos during their purchase journey, 
including product walkthroughs, peer 
testimonials, and ROI breakdowns. 

Smarter Email and
Marketing Automation

Segmentation, behavioral triggers, and 
dynamic personalization distinguish 
high-performing campaigns from those 
that go unopened. Marketing automation, 
driven by AI, allows for scalable one-to-one 
communication and supports everything 
from lead nurturing to onboarding.

AI adoption is also transforming content 
creation and predictive analytics. 
Organizations that effectively implement AI 
experience significant efficiency 
improvements and gain deeper customer 
insights. AI-generated content is projected 
to make up 30% of all B2B content 
production by 2026, meaning traditional 
campaign workflows will see substantial 
changes.

Platform-Specific Social and
Video Strategies
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Lead Generation, CX, and the 
ROI Shift

Significant percentage of B2B marketers still 
strugge with lead generation, shifting the 
focus to intent-based qualification, and 
multi-channel nurturing models. Companies 
with strong marketing and sales alignment 
are achieving 24% faster revenue growth, 
reflecting the value of unified go-to-market 
strategies.

Post-sale engagement is also becoming a 
key revenue lever. With customer acquisition 
costs up 60% over the past five years, 
retention and expansion have become 
high-priority metrics. Companies investing in 
customer success programs, onboarding 
experiences, and proactive account 
management are seeing measurable 
improvements in renewal and upsell rates.

Looking Ahead:
Agility and Adaptability

The most valuable B2B marketing 
capability going forward won’t be a 
tool—it’ll be adaptability. With fast-moving 
shifts in buyer behavior, tech adoption, and 
macroeconomic conditions, static 
strategies will fall short. Companies that 
build flexible systems, data-rich insights, 
and learning-based cultures will have the 
upper hand.

By 2026, voice search will influence 40% of 
B2B research, and AI-driven personalization 
will redefine how brands connect with 
prospects. The challenge for marketers is 
clear: embrace the complexity, invest in 
intelligence, and build systems that evolve 
with the market.

Account-Based
Marketing (ABM) Matures

ABM has shifted from a niche strategy to a 
mainstream necessity. Marketers are 
integrating CRM data, third-party intent 
signals, and marketing automation to create 
highly targeted campaigns that speak 
directly to buying committees. ABM strategies 
now generate 208% more revenue than 
traditional marketing initiatives.
B2B buying teams are becoming larger and 
more complex. By 2026, an average of 10 
stakeholders will be involved in a single B2B 
purchase decision. ABM’s hyper-personalized, 
multi-threaded approach is uniquely suited 
to navigate these stakeholder dynamics.
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Maintain a deliberate client-first 
methodology that prioritizes 
deep understanding of 
customer needs and challenges, 
resulting in sustained partnership 
longevity and measurable client 
satisfaction metrics

Leverage our proven track 
record of multi-year client 
engagements to demonstrate 
consistent value delivery and 
trusted advisor positioning 
within target markets 

Execute comprehensive 
account management 
strategies that transform 
transactional relationships 
into strategic partnerships, 
driving recurring revenue 
streams and organic growth 
opportunities

Client Centric Excellence &  
Relationship Management 

Scaling
Smarter.
Serving
Deeper.
Leading
with Insight.
After a year of bold strides and 
record growth, we step into FY 
2025–26 with sharpened clarity 
and expanding ambition.
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Strategic Investments for 
Organizational Excellence

Deploy a robust team of 
specialized professionals 
across core competency 
areas, ensuring optimal 
resource allocation and 
project delivery excellence 

Maintain strategic workforce 
planning initiatives that align 
talent acquisition with 
projected growth trajectories 
and evolving market 
demands 

Foster a high-performance 
culture through targeted 
professional development 
programs and retention 
strategies that preserve 
institutional knowledge

Organizational Capacity & Human Capital

Execute disciplined capital 
allocation across three critical 
growth pillars: human capital 
development, technology 
infrastructure advancement, 
and process optimization 
initiatives 

Drive continuous innovation 
through systematic process 
improvement methodologies 
and emerging technology 
adoption strategies 

Position the organization for 
accelerated growth 
through investments that 
support expanded market 
presence and service 
delivery capacity

Implement scalable 
operational frameworks 
and automation solutions 
that enhance delivery 
efficiency while maintaining 
quality standards 
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Building for Scale,
Staying Human
As we enter FY 2025–26, Toss The Coin is poised to build on last year’s momentum 
with sharper focus, deeper partnerships, and scalable systems that support creative 
excellence. We stay grounded in what built us—Clarity, Creativity, and 
Consistency. This year, we invest in turning instinctive brilliance into repeatable, 
scientific marketing systems, without losing the spark that makes it human.
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CoE on a BOT Model: 
For Clients Who Want 
In-House Without the Overhead
Our Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) model 
for dedicated marketing teams has gained 
traction as clients seek embedded, 
high-skill teams without the burden of 
building internally. This CoE model offers 
agility, cost-efficiency, and deep brand 
alignment, hallmarks of long-term value 
creation.

CMO Services to Lead 
Portfolio Growth
Our CMO services contribute 65% of total 
revenues and will remain the flagship 
offering. This includes positioning strategy, 
integrated marketing execution, leadership 
branding, and GTM design delivered 
through embedded partnerships that go 
beyond vendor relationships.

Retainers as a Strategic Lever
With nearly 90% of our revenue from retainer 
clients we will continue to prioritize this 
model. Retainers enable stronger planning, 
faster execution, and deeper impact. We are 
not in the business of one-off campaigns. 
We build marketing engines.

CMO-as-a-Service,
Now Cross-Sector
While our roots are in B2B tech marketing, 
our CMO partnerships now span multiple 
sectors from education, manufacturing to 
telecommunications, IT Infrastructure to 
facility management. We will continue to 
position Toss The Coin as a strategic 
marketing partner, ‘Your Growth 
Accelerator’, across industry sectors.

AI-Enabled, Not AI-Obsessed
From etch (for leadership branding) to 
Kathai (for HR storytelling), our AI initiatives 
will continue to optimize, automate, and 
elevate marketing delivery. In 
FY 2025–26, we will focus on integrating AI 
to scale personalization, reduce turnaround 
time, and free up human bandwidth for 
high-value creativity.

U.S. as the Core 
Growth Engine
The U.S. continues to be our primary 
market contributing 65% of our reveए
nues. This year, we aim to enhance 
delivery excellence, widen our client 
base within the region, and strengthen 
relationships through on-ground 
presence, sector-specific expertise, 
and proactive account management.

Road Ahead 
2025–26
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Trajectory Engineered by 

Intelligence
Solutions and Frameworks



Mervous
Mervous is our proprietary marketing operating system that powers our strategic thinking, 
creative craft, and AI-led execution. It is a combination of mental models, frameworks, and 
tools we continue to develop to bring clarity, consistency, and speed to every marketing 
decision we make, for ourselves and our clients.

Marketing Nervous System

Decision Frameworks to
Drive Strategy

Customer Marketing 
Maturity Radar Kathai

Brand architecture 
Framework etch

03
This is a structured decision framework designed 
to assess a company's marketing maturity across 
brand, content, demand generation, and solution 
marketing. It breaks down strategy into actionable, 
measurable parameters mapped to different 
engagement stages—pre-onboarding, discovery, 
and long-term partnership—enabling consultative 
teams to uncover gaps, prioritize action, and drive 
growth with clarity and precision.

A proprietary decision-making framework designed to 
guide group companies through complex brand 
structuring choices. It goes beyond marketing optics 
to evaluate key parameters across shareholder 
priorities , customer clarity , employee alignment, and 
market dynamics. The framework compliments the 
outcomes from our design thinking led workshops and 
interviews to arrive at the right recommendation.

etch helps CXOs and forward-thinking leaders 
grow their digital footprint and influence on
LinkedIn. By combining insight-led storytelling 
and AI-powered drafting, it enables consistent, 
authentic, and strategic content that drives 
real business impact.

Kathai began as an AI tool for HR 
communications. It has evolved into a powerful, 
organization-wide assistant that accelerates 
strategy, content, and execution across 
functions. It ensures faster turnarounds, 
consistent outputs, and scalable impact. 
It’s not just automation—it’s a smarter way to 
work, embedded directly into Toss The Coin’s 
delivery model.

04

01

02

From Imagination to
AI Automation

The Future of Mervous
Toss The Coin is developing the next set of agentic systems powered by Agentic Retrieval-Augmented 
Generation (RAG) and a powerful orchestration engine. These systems will integrate with state-of-the-art 
tools through Model Context Protocols (MCPs) and connecting seamlessly with marketing workflow 
automation platforms. This will enable our agents to not only generate campaign concepts and creative 
assets, but also plan, execute, and optimize marketing initiatives. 

By embedding AI directly into marketing workflows, Toss The Coin will dramatically improve speed, 
consistency, and ROI while freeing human teams to focus on brand vision, creativity, and client relationships. 
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Brand
Maturity

Marketing
Operations
Maturity

Growth
Expertise 
Maturity

Demand Gen
Maturity 

Clarity and
Consistency of
Positioning

Lead Generation
and Conservation

Intellectual Capital
and Expertise

Scaling and
Monetization

Customer Marketing Maturity Radar 

Significance

This is a structured decision-making framework created to evaluate an organization’s 
marketing maturity across four critical domain.

1. Tailored Engagement from Day Zero 
2. No One-Size-Fits-All Approach  

3. Clear Communication & Alignment 
4. Build a Priority Matrix for Easy Decision-making 

Solution 
Maturity 

Marketing 
Maturity 

Demand 
Generation Maturity

Brand 
Maturity 

Mervous

Each domain is further broken down into sub-segments and parameters that are categorized 
by their strategic, operational, or tactical nature. These parameters are then aligned with the 
appropriate engagement stages—from Due Diligence (pre-onboarding), through Discovery 
(first 90 days), to Active Engagement (ongoing execution and optimization). 

This lens acts as both a scorecard and a strategic roadmap, enabling consulting teams to 
assess, prioritize, and elevate a client’s marketing capabilities without overwhelming 
them—respecting access levels, trust-building phases, and delivery bandwidth. 
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Mervous

The CMR Lens can be used during the proposal 
and pre-sales phase to qualify opportunities, 
structure initial workshops, and demonstrate a 
deep, methodical approach to assessing value. 

Stronger Client Retention & Expansion

Impact

Focused Recommendations & Roadmap

Better Qualified Engagements
01

02

03

04
Alignment With Measurement & KPIs 

Rather than audit everything at once, the framework 
enables layered prioritization—identifying quick wins, 
foundational gaps, and areas of strategic 
acceleration. It provides a clear path from 
assessment to action.

Each parameter naturally ties back to leading indicators 
(brand reach, content depth, and engagement) or 
lagging indicators (pipeline impact, customer 
advocacy, and solution adoption). This supports 
KPI-based conversations with clients and stakeholders.

The maturity-based structure creates opportunities 
for ongoing optimization and advisory, ensuring 
clients return for more supportas they grow. It 
transforms the engagement from a point-in-time 
project to a value partnership. 
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01

02 Brand Architecture 
Decision Matrix 

Customer Marketing 
Maturity Radar

Mervous

Brand Architecture Framework 

Significance

Brand Architecture is often treated as a design decision, but it is a strategic structure that 
impacts perception, recall, culture, and future scale. It is a strategic compass for brand 
structuring decisions. This proprietary framework from Toss The Coin compliments and 
augments the Design-Thinking led workshop and CXO interviews that we conduct as part of the 
process. This decision matrix helps structure their brand ecosystem with clarity and strategic 
intent. It brings together business logic, customer understanding, and stakeholder alignment 
into a single framework that guides whether to adopt a Branded House, Endorsed Brand, or 
Independent Brand model. 

Brand architecture isn’t just a naming or design decision—it’s a long-term strategic lever. This 
framework gives leadership teams a structured, data-informed approach to deciding how their 
brand ecosystem should evolve. It ensures decisions are aligned not just with customer clarity, 
but also shareholder value, employee engagement, and market context. It becomes the 
strategic compass for future product launches, acquisitions, and portfolio scale. 

Impact
Clients who use the framework gain clarity and consensus across CXO stakeholders. It reduces 
internal misalignment, sharpens external perception, and ensures scalable growth decisions. 
Whether the recommendation is a Branded House or Independent Brands, the matrix provides 
measurable reasoning that de-risks future investments and supports both go-to-market and 
brand integration efforts. The result: stronger portfolios, better resource allocation, and a brand 
system built to scale

How It Works 
The matrix evaluates multiple measurable parameters across few key lenses. Each parameter 
is scored objectively and weighted based on strategic priority. The cumulative score provides a 
directional recommendation.

Employees
Internal mobility,
opportunities, 
brand ownership, 
internal pride

Share Holders
Impact on valuation,
risk, and scalability

Customers
Clarity and Trust

Market Context
External 
perception and
competitive risk
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Mervous

Kathai 
Evolving AI into a Marketing Powerhouse 

Significance

In 2025, Toss The Coin launched Kathai, an AI-powered microservice specialized in generating 
high-quality, human-toned HR emails—from onboarding invites to policy updates and team 
announcements. Designed to streamline repetitive communications, Kathai enabled HR teams 
to maintain tone consistency, reduce manual drafting time, and that ensures every message 
felt polished and inclusive. 

Building on the architecture and AI framework pioneered by Kathai, Toss The Coin extended its 
capabilities into a more advanced and versatile assistant. While Kathai focused on a single 
business function, the evolution of Kathai was designed to support work across the entire 
organization. Using the same underlying language engine, it can identify relevant tools, retrieve 
system prompts, and proactively generate outputs ranging from go-to-market plans and brand 
sprints to content calendars and launch strategies.

Kathai transforms how clients engage with Toss The Coin by ensuring every project starts with a 
proven, high-quality foundation. It brings structure to even the most complex briefs, accelerates 
the ideation process, and maintains strategic alignment from concept to delivery. Whether the 
requirement is a detailed launch strategy or rapid content generation, it ensures consistency, 
speed, and precision—all while freeing up human teams to focus on the creative and strategic 
decisions that matter most. 

Impact
By evolving Kathai’s proven technology, Toss The Coin has created an AI assistant that doesn’t just 
automate communication—it accelerates strategic and creative execution across the company. 

Faster turnarounds by reducing project 
lead times through instant retrieval of 
relevant playbooks and templates 

Higher consistency by strandardizing  
approach to strategic outputs across 
multiple clients and industries 

Scalability owing to one AI framework 
powering multiple functions without 
duplicating development efforts

01

02

03
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Mervous
etch
Making Leadership Branding Integral to CMO Offering
etch is a leadership branding solution developed by Toss The Coin. It enables CXOs and senior 
leaders to build strategic visibility on LinkedIn through consistent, thought-led content aligned with 
the company’s business goals. 

It functions as part of a quarterly marketing engine and provides each leader with a structured, 
high-quality content calendar, designed to elevate professional presence while reinforcing the 
company’s market positioning.

Establish 
executive 
credibility 
in-market. 

01
Build narrative 
alignment across 
departments. 

02
Strengthen 
employer 
brand through 
leadership 
presence. 

03
Equip sales and marketing 
teams with 
thought-leadership 
assets that open 
conversations.

04

Significance
In B2B markets, buyer trust often starts with individuals, not companies. etch enables clients to:

How does the app help? 
etch operationalizes executive visibility by:

Mapping content to 
business priorities  

Delivering a full 
posting calendar 

Streamlining 
content creation

Enabling 
consistency at scale

01 02

03 04
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Mervous

Impact

The Future of etch 
The next phase of etch focuses on AI-driven personalization and increased self-sufficiency. 
Our long-term goal is to transform etch from a service to a scalable, intelligent platform that 
empowers leadership teams to maintain high-quality, strategic visibility with minimal lift, while 
preserving authenticity and voice. 

Stronger market perception 
Leaders are seen as informed, 
relevant, and connected to 
key industry issues.

01 Support for commercial outcomes 
Executive content often drives warm 
outreach, accelerates deal confidence, 
and improves top-of-funnel visibility.

03

Increased engagement from 
key audiences 
Prospects, talent, and partners 
interact more directly with 
leadership content than with 
brand channels. 

02 Cross-functional alignment 
Leadership messaging reflects and 
reinforces GTM strategy, helping unify 
external communications across teams. 

04

Increased strategic value-add 
This service is included in the full-suit CMO 
retainer offering of Toss the coin, making it 
a valuable add-on for clients.

05
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Notice to the Shareholders 

Notice is hereby given that the FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the 
shareholders of the Company will be held on Wednesday the 10th day of September 
2025 at 11.30 A.M. through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means 
(OAVM) to transact the following businesses: 
Ordinary Business 
1. To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, the following as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 
2025, together with the Auditors Report thereon and the Report of the Board of 
Directors for the financial year ended on that date be and are hereby approved and 
adopted.” 

2. To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, the following as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Reshma Budhia (holding DIN 08893679), Whole Time  
Director cum CFO, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for  
re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as Whole Time Director cum CFO of 
the Company.” 

3. To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, the following as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Sudhanshu Budhia (holding DIN 07115984), Director, who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is 
hereby re-appointed as Director of the Company.” 

By Order of the Board 
For TOSS THE COIN LIMITED 

16.08.2025  

-SD-

Chennai

Narayanan Jayan
Chairman cum Managing Director 

DIN: 08893678
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Notes 

1. Members are informed that the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) and the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide their circulars issued from time 
to time (collectively referred to as “MCA and SEBI Circulars”), has permitted the 
conduct of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the in-person presence of 
the members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the Fifth AGM shall be 
the Registered Office of the Company situated at Door No.1A, Bheemanna Mudali 
Street, Alwarpet, Teynampet, Chennai – 600 018. 
In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”) and the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is 
being held through VC / OAVM. Members desirous of participating in the AGM 
through VC / OAVM, may refer to the procedures mentioned below. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the 
AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the 
proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held 
through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the physical 
attendance of the Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for this AGM and 
hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 
Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

3. Institutional / Corporate members intending to appoint their authorized 
representatives for attending the meeting through VC / OAVM are requested to 
send a certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representative to 
attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting to the Scrutinizer by email at their 
email address chetanbafnanadco@gmail.com with a copy marked to the 
company’s e-mail address cs@tossthe.co.in 

4. Details as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General 
Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) in 
respect of the director(s) seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting are furnished as annexure and forms part of this notice. 



 

Annual Report 2024 - 25Toss The Coin Ltd    41 

5. The register of members and share transfer books of the company will remain 
closed from Thursday, 4th September, 2025 to Wednesday, 10th September, 2025 
(both days inclusive) as per Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 91 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

6. Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars 
registered against their depository accounts will be used by the company for 
payment of dividend, if any. The Company or its registrar and share transfer 
agent, M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as “M/s. Link 
Intime India Private Limited”) cannot act on any request received directly from the 
members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or 
bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the depository 
participant by the members. Members holding shares in physical form and 
desirous of registering bank particulars against their respective folios for payment 
of dividend, are requested to write to the registrar and share transfer agent of the 
Company. 

7. Members are advised to utilize the National Electronic Clearing System (NECS) for 
receiving dividends. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to 
contact their respective Depository Participants for availing NECS facility. 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to download the ECS 
form from the website of the Company and the same, duly filled up and signed 
along with original cancelled cheque leaf may be sent to the Company or to the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

8. Dividend of prior years: Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
dividend which remained unpaid / unclaimed for a period of seven years from the 
date of transfer to the unpaid dividend account is required to be transferred 
along with the shares to the “Investor Education and Protection Fund” established 
by the Central Government.  

9. The Company has entered into agreements with National Securities Depository 
Limited (“NSDL”) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”). The 
Depository System envisages the elimination of several problems involved in the 
scrip-based system such as bad deliveries, fraudulent transfers, fake certificates, 
thefts in postal transit, delay in transfers, mutilation of share certificates, etc. 
Simultaneously, Depository System offers several advantages like exemption from 
stamp duty, elimination of concept of market lot, elimination of bad deliveries, 
reduction in transaction costs, improved liquidity, etc. Members, therefore, now 
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have the option of holding and dealing in the shares of the Company in 
electronic form through NSDL or CDSL. Members are encouraged to convert their 
holding to electronic mode. 

10. Members holding shares in electronic form may please note that as per the 
regulations of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), the Company is obliged to print the 
details on the dividend warrants as furnished by these depositories to the 
Company and the Company cannot entertain any request for deletion / change of 
bank details already printed on dividend warrants as per the information received 
from the concerned depositories. In this regard, members should contact their 
depository participants (DP) and furnish particulars of any changes desired by 
them. 

11. In accordance with SEBI’s Master Circular dated 17th May 2023 and amendment 
circular dated 17th November 2023, 7th May 2024 and 10th June 2024, Members 
holding shares in physical form, whose folio(s) are updated with PAN, nomination 
details, contact details, Bank Account details or updated specimen signature, will 
only be eligible for payment of dividend, through electronic mode effective from 
1st April 2024. Therefore, Members holding shares in physical form are requested 
to update the above-mentioned details by providing the appropriate requests 
through ISR forms with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent to ensure receipt 
of dividend. 

12. The relevant formats for Nomination and Updation of KYC details viz; Forms ISR-
1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13, SH-14 and SEBI circular are available on Company’s 
website as well as the website of M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited 
(formerly known as “M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited”), the Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Original cancelled cheque leaf bearing the 
name of the first holder failing which first security holder is required to submit 
copy of bank passbook / statement attested by the bank which is mandatory for 
registering the new bank details. 

13. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated that the 
transfer of securities held in physical form, shall not be processed by the listed 
entities / Registrars and Share Transfer Agents with effect from April 1, 2019. 
Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022 has 
mandated that the Company or its Registrars and Share Transfer Agents shall 
issue the securities in dematerialized form only while dealing the requests for 
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issue of duplicate share certificate, sub-division or consolidation of certificates / 
folios, transmission or transposition, with effect from 25th January, 2022. 
Therefore, the members, who are holding share(s) in physical form, are requested 
to immediately dematerialize their shareholding in the Company. Members 
holding equity shares of the Company in physical form are requested to kindly 
get their equity shares converted into demat/electronic form to get inherent 
benefits of dematerialisation. Members can contact the Company or RTA, for 
assistance in this regard. 

14. In case of transmission / transposition, the members are requested to forward 
their requests and other communications directly to the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company, M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited 
(formerly known as “M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited”), Surya 35, May Flower 
Avenue, Behind Senthil Nagar, Sowripalayam Road, Coimbatore – 641028, Tamil 
Nadu, India. 

15. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members 
may file nomination forms in respect of their physical shareholdings. Any member 
wishing to avail this facility may submit to the Company’s Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent in the prescribed Form SH-13 (hosted on the website of the 
Company and RTA). Should any assistance be desired, members shall get in touch 
with the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. Members holding shares in 
electronic form must approach their Depository Participant(s) for completing the 
nomination formalities. 

16. Change of Address: Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
notify immediately any change in their address along with respective address 
proof viz, Aadhar / Electricity Bill / Telephone Bill / Ration Card / Voter ID Card / 
Passport etc. and bank particulars to the Company or its registrar & share transfer 
agent and in case their shares are held in dematerialized form, this information 
should be passed on directly to their respective depository participants and not 
to the Company / Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

17. Non-Resident Indian (“NRI”) Members are requested to inform the Company or 
its RTA or to the concerned Depository Participant(s), as the case may be, 
immediately: 
a) the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent 

settlement (or) 
b) the particulars of the NRE / NRO Account with a Bank in India, if not furnished 

earlier. 
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18. Members are requested to update their name, postal address, e-mail address, 
telephone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, 
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and 
branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., in respect of 
shares held in dematerialized form with their respective depository participants 
and in respect of shares held in physical form with the Company’s Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent, M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as 
“M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited”) in prescribed Form ISR-1 and other forms 
as notified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to time. 

19. As per the green initiative taken by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, members 
are advised to register their email address with the Company in respect of shares 
held in physical form and with the concerned depository participant in respect of 
shares held in demat form to enable the Company to serve documents in 
electronic form. 

20. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the Fifth 
AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent only through electronic 
mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company 
/ RTA / Depositories. Further, a letter providing the web link including the exact 
path where the complete details of the Annual Report is available will be sent to 
the Shareholders who have not registered their email address. Members may 
note that the Notice of the Fifth Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report 
for the financial year 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website 
www.tossthe.co.in, website of the Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited (BSE) 
at www.bseindia.com and on the website of M/s. MUFG Intime India Private 
Limited (formerly known as “M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited”) 
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in. Members can attend and participate in the 
Annual General Meeting through VC / OAVM facility only. 

21. Members are requested to make all correspondence in connection with shares 
held by them by addressing letters directly to the Company Secretary of the 
Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. MUFG Intime India 
Private Limited (formerly known as “M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited”), Surya 
35, May Flower Avenue, Behind Senthil Nagar, Sowripalayam Road, Coimbatore – 
641028, Tamil Nadu, India, by quoting the Folio number or the Client ID number 
with DP ID number. 
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22. Members desirous of receiving any information on the accounts or operations of 
the Company are requested to forward his / her queries by email to the Company 
at info@tossthe.co.in at least seven working days prior to the date of the Annual 
General Meeting. Such queries will be replied by the Company suitably during the 
AGM or through a separate e-mail. 

23. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears 
as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the 
Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

24. Members are requested to note that the Fifth Annual General Meeting is 
scheduled to be held through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual 
Means (OAVM) and hence, the route map of the venue as required under 
Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS- 2) is not annexed to this Notice. 

25. Annual financial statements and related details are posted on the Company’s 
website and are also kept for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company 
during normal business hours. A copy of the same will also be provided to the 
members on request. 

26. Soft copies the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personal and their 
shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, 
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for 
inspection by the members during the AGM. 

27. Registration of email ID and Bank Account details: 
In case the shareholder’s email ID is already registered with the Company / its 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent “RTA” / Depositories, login details for e-voting are 
being sent to the registered email address. In case the shareholders have not 
registered his / her / their email address with the Company / its RTA / Depositories 
and or not updated the Bank Account mandate for receipt of dividend, the following 
instructions to be followed: 

a) In case of shares held in physical form, kindly submit your updation request in 
the prescribed Form ISR-1 (hosted on the website of Company and RTA) to 
our RTA, Link Intime India Private Limited. 

b) In the case of Shares held in Demat mode, the shareholder may please contact 
the Depository Participant (“DP”) and register the email address and bank 
account details in the demat account as per the process followed and advised 
by the DP. 
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28. Voting through electronic means: 
a) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s), amendments, clarifications, 
exemptions or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) and 
Regulation 44(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS - 2), 
the Company is pleased to provide its members the facility to cast their vote 
electronically from a place other than the venue of the Annual General 
Meeting (“remote e-Voting”) at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by 
electronic means and all the business items as set out in this notice of Annual 
General Meeting which shall be transacted through the remote e-voting / e-
voting services provided by M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly 
known as “M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited”). 

b) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes Member of 
the Company after dispatch of Annual General Meeting Notice and holding 
shares as of the cut-off date, i.e. Wednesday, September 3rd, 2025, may refer 
to this Notice of the Annual General Meeting, posted on Company’s website 
www.tossthe.co.in for detailed procedure with regard to remote e-voting. Any 
person who ceases to be a member of the Company as on the cut-off date 
and is in receipt of this Notice, shall treat this Notice for information purposes 
only. 

c) The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM 
may also attend / participate in the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote(s) again. Once the vote on a Resolution is cast by 
the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

d) The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:- 
i. The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, 7th September, 2025 at 

09:00 AM (IST) and ends on Tuesday, 9th September, 2025 at 05:00 PM 
(IST). 

ii. During this period, the shareholders of the Company, holding shares either 
in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Wednesday, 3rd 
September, 2025 (the cut-off date), may cast their vote electronically. The 
e-voting module shall be disabled by MUFG for voting thereafter. 
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Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders: 
In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in 
their demat accounts to access remote e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL  
METHOD 1 - NSDL IDeAS facility 
Shareholders registered for IDeAS facility: 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and click on “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “IDeAS Login Section”. 

b) Click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under “IDeAS Login Section”. 
c) Post successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 

Value added services section. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 
services. 

d) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 
Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote 
during the remote e-voting period. 

Shareholders not registered for IDeAS facility: 
a) To register, visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and select “Register Online for 

IDeAS Portal” or click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

b) Enter 8-character DP ID, 8-digit Client ID, Mobile no, Verification code & click 
on “Submit”. 

c) Enter the last 4 digits of your bank account / generate ‘OTP’ 
d) Post successful registration, user will be provided with Login ID and password. 

Follow steps given above in points (a-d). 
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METHOD 2 - NSDL e-voting website 
a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com 
b) Click on the “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
c) Enter User ID (i.e., your 16-digit demat account no. held with NSDL), 

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository 

website wherein you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services. 

e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 
Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote 
during the remote e-voting period. 

METHOD 3 - NSDL OTP based login 
a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp 
b) Enter your 8 - character DP ID, 8 - digit Client Id, PAN, Verification code and 

generate OTP. 
c) Enter the OTP received on your registered email ID/ mobile number and click 

on login. 
d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository 

website wherein you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services. 

e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 
Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote 
during the remote e-voting period. 

Individual Shareholders registered with CDSL Easi / Easiest facility METHOD 1 - 
CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 
Shareholders registered for Easi / Easiest facility: 

a) Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or 
www.cdslindia.com & click on New System Myeasi Tab. 

b) Enter existing username, Password & click on “Login”. 
c) Post successful authentication, user will be able to see e-voting option. The 

evoting option will have links of e-voting service providers i.e., MUFG InTime. 
Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 
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Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote 
during the remote e-voting period. 

Shareholders not registered for Easi/ Easiest facility: 
a) To register, visit URL: 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration / 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/ Registration/EasiestRegistration 

b) Proceed with updating the required fields for registration. 
c) Post successful registration, user will be provided username and password. 

Follow steps given above in points (a-c). 
METHOD 2 - CDSL e-voting page 

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com 
b) Go to e-voting tab. 
c) Enter 16-digit Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on 

“Submit”. 
d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and 

Email as recorded in Demat Account 
e) Post successful authentication, user will be able to see e-voting option. The 

evoting option will have links of e-voting service providers i.e., MUFG InTime. 
Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 
Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote 
during the remote e-voting period. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository 
Participant 
Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your depository participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-
voting facility. 

a) Login to DP website 
b) After Successful login, user shall navigate through “e-voting” option. 
c) Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository 

website after successful authentication, wherein user can see e-voting feature. 
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d) Post successful authentication, click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link 
displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote 
website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

Login method for shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
Shareholders holding shares in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register and vote 
on InstaVote as under: 
STEP 1: LOGIN / SIGNUP to InstaVote  
Shareholders registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in & click on “Login” under ‘SHARE 
HOLDER’ tab. 

b) Enter details as under: 
c) User ID: Enter User ID 

1. Password: Enter existing Password 
2. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 
3. Click “Submit”. 

(Home page of e-voting will open. Follow the process given under “Steps to cast vote 
for Resolutions”) 
Shareholders not registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in & click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE 
HOLDER’ tab & register with details as under: 
1. User ID: Enter User ID 
2. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders 

who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ 
Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

3. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As 
recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format) 
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4. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), 
as recorded with your DP/Company. 
o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above 
o Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ 

and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above 
5. Set the password of your choice. 

(The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character 
(!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter). 

6. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code. 
7. Click “Submit” (You have now registered on InstaVote). 

Post successful registration, click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab & follow 
steps given above in points (a-b). 
STEP 2: Steps to cast vote for Resolutions through InstaVote 

A. Post successful authentication and redirection to InstaVote inbox page, 
you will be able to see the “Notification for e-voting”. 

B. Select ‘View’ icon. E-voting page will appear. 
C. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your 

desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link). 

D. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. 
E. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click 

on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify 
your vote. 

NOTE: Shareholders may click on “Vote as per Proxy Advisor’s Recommendation” 
option and view proxy advisor recommendations for each resolution before casting 
vote. “Vote as per Proxy Advisor’s Recommendation” option provides access to 
expert insights during the e-Voting process. Shareholders may modify their vote 
before final submission. 
Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or 
change it subsequently. 
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Guidelines for Institutional shareholders (“Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual 
Fund”)  
STEP 1 – Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Registration 

A. Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
B. Click on “Sign Up” under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” 
C. Fill up your entity details and submit the form. 
D. A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the 

Primary contact person email ID (which is filled at the time of sign up). The 
said form is to be signed by the Authorised Signatory, Director, Company 
Secretary of the entity & stamped and sent to insta. vote@linkintime.co.in. 

E. Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) is sent to 
Primary contact person’s email ID. (You have now registered on InstaVote) 

STEP 2 – Investor Mapping 
A. Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login 

credentials. 
B. Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu Section 
C. Map the Investor with the following details: 
1. ‘Investor ID’ – Investor ID for NSDL demat account is 8 Character DP ID 

followed by 8 Digit Client ID i.e., IN00000012345678; Investor ID for CDSL 
demat account is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

2. ‘Investor’s Name - Enter Investor’s Name as updated with DP. 
3. ‘Investor PAN’ - Enter your 10-digit PAN. 
4. ‘Power of Attorney’ - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney. 

NOTE: File Name for the Board resolution/ Power of Attorney shall be – DP ID and 
Client ID or 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also 
upload specimen signatures. 

D. Click on Submit button. (The investor is now mapped with the Custodian / 
Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Entity). The same can be viewed under the 
“Report Section”. 
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STEP 3 – Steps to cast vote for Resolutions through InstaVote 
The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-voting 
period. 
METHOD 1 - VOTES ENTRY 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login 
credentials. 

b) Click on “Votes Entry” tab under the Menu section. 
c) Enter the “Event No.” for which you want to cast vote. Event No. can be viewed 

on the home page of InstaVote under “On-going Events”. 
d) Enter “16-digit Demat Account No.”. 
e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired 

option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click 
on the ‘View Resolution’ file link). After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour 
/ Against, click on ‘Submit’. 

f) A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 
‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote. 

(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or 
change it subsequently). 
METHOD 2 - VOTES UPLOAD 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login 
credentials. 

b) After successful login, you will see “Notification for e-voting”. 
c) Select “View” icon for “Company’s Name / Event number”. 
d) E-voting page will appear. 
e) Download sample vote file from “Download Sample Vote File” tab. 
f) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ in the 

sample vote file and upload the same under “Upload Vote File” option. 
g) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will be displayed. 

(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or 
change it subsequently). 



 

Annual Report 2024 - 25Toss The Coin Ltd    54 

Helpdesk: 
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode: 
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode facing any technical issue in login may contact 
INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com or 
contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000. 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective 
helpdesk for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and 
CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.com or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800-21-09911 

Forgot Password: 
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode: 
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode: 
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password 
or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on: 
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
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• Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 
• Click “forgot password?” 
• Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). 
• Click on “SUBMIT”. 
In case Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund has forgotten the USER ID [Login 
ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option 
available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
• Click on ‘Login’ under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” tab 
• Click “forgot password?” 
• Enter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). 
• Click on “SUBMIT”. 
In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her 
registered e-mail address. Shareholders can set the password of his / her choice by 
providing information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, 
PAN, DOB/DOI etc. The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least 
one special character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least 
one capital letter. 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has 
forgotten the password: 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER 
ID [Login ID] or Password or both, then the Shareholders are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned depository / 
depository participants website. 
In case Custodian / Corporate Body / Mutual Fund has forgotten the USER ID [Login 
ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option 
available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
• Click on ‘Login’ under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” tab 
• Click “forgot password?” 
• Enter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). 
• Click on “SUBMIT”. 
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In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her 
registered e-mail address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by 
providing information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, 
PAN, DOB / DOI etc. The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at 
least one special character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at 
least one capital letter. 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has 
forgotten the password: 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER 
ID [Login ID] or Password or both, then the Shareholders are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned depository/ 
depository participants website. 
General Instructions - Shareholders 
• It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person 

and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
• For shareholders / members holding shares in physical form, the details can be 

used only for voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
• During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time 

till they have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 
InstaVote Support Desk 
M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as “M/s. Link Intime India 
Private Limited”) Instameet VC Instructions for Shareholders: 
In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 
19.09.2024, the Companies can conduct their AGMs/ EGMs on or before 30th 
September 2025 by means of Video Conference (VC) or other audio-visual means 
(OAVM). 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in 
their demat accounts to access InstaMeet facility. Login method for shareholders 
to attend the General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

a) Visit URL: https://instameet.in.mpms.mufg.com & click on “Login”. 
b) Select the “Company Name” and register with your following details: 
c) Select Check Box - Demat Account No. / Folio No. / PAN 
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• Shareholders holding shares in NSDL/ CDSL demat account shall select check box 
- Demat Account No. and enter the 16-digit demat account number. 

• Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall select check box – Folio No. 
and enter the Folio Number registered with the company. 

• Shareholders shall select check box – PAN and enter 10-digit Permanent Account 
Number (PAN). Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided 
by MUFG Intime, if applicable. 

• Mobile No: Mobile No. as updated with DP is displayed automatically. 
Shareholders who have not updated their Mobile No with the DP shall enter the 
mobile no. 

• Email ID: Email Id as updated with DP is displayed automatically. Shareholders 
who have not updated their Mobile No with the DP shall enter the mobile no. 
d) Click “Go to Meeting” 

You are now registered for InstaMeet, and your attendance is marked for the 
meeting. 
Instructions for shareholders to Speak during the General Meeting through 
InstaMeet: 

a) Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their 
request with the Company. 

b) Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the 
provision made by the Company. 

c) Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance 
for the meeting. Please remember speaking serial number and start your 
conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and audio of your 
device. 

d) Other shareholder who has not registered as “Speaker Shareholder” may still 
ask questions to the panellist via active chat-board during the meeting. 

*Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting / 
management will announce the name and serial number for speaking. 
Instructions for Shareholders to Vote during the General Meeting through 
InstaMeet: 
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Once the electronic voting is activated during the meeting, shareholders who have 
not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 

a) a) On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your 
vote” 

b) Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the 
registered mobile number / registered email Id) received during registration 
for InstaMEET 

c) Click on ‘Submit’. 
d) After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the 

same the option “Favour / Against” for voting. 
e) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour / Against” as 

desired. Enter the number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the 
cut-off date under ‘Favour / Against’. 

f) After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour / Against as desired and you 
have decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If 
you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, 
click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. Once you confirm your vote 
on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote 
subsequently. 

Note: 
Shareholders / Members, who will be present in the General Meeting through 
InstaMeet facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote 
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting facility during the meeting. 
Shareholders / Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the 
General Meeting will be eligible to attend / participate in the General Meeting 
through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the 
meeting. 
Shareholders / Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets / 
Laptops connected through broadband for better experience. 
Shareholders / Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 
MBPS download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
Please note that Shareholders / Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets 
or through Laptops connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio / Visual 
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loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is therefore recommended to use stable 
Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
Helpdesk: 
Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAMEET helpdesk by 
sending a request at instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 
6000 / 4918 6175. 
InstaMeet Support Desk 
M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as “M/s. Link Intime India 
Private Limited”) Other information: 

a) The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares in the
paid-up equity share capital of the company as on the cut-off date i.e.
Wednesday, 3rd September, 2025.

b) Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a Member through electronic means,
the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. Further, the
Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting shall not vote by e-
voting conducted during the Meeting.

c) Mr. Chetan Bafna (ACS 55464 and CP No. 21201), proprietor of Chetan Bafna
and Co, Practicing Company Secretaries, Chennai has been appointed as the
scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and e-voting process at the
meeting in a fair and transparent manner and for the purpose of ascertaining
the majority.

d) The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of the e-voting at the Annual
General Meeting, will first count the votes cast by e-voting during the AGM
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the
presence of at least two witnesses who are not in the employment of the
Company and shall make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes
cast in favour or against, if any, within the prescribed time to the Chairman or
a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and
declare the result of the voting forthwith.

e) The results shall be declared within the time stipulated under the applicable
laws. The results declared along with the consolidated scrutinizer’s report shall
be placed on the company’s website www.tossthe.co.in and on the website of
MUFG and the same will be communicated to the Stock Exchange where the
Company’s shares are listed within the stipulated time.
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Additional Information of Directors (relating to Item No.2 and 3) with regard to 
appointment / re-appointment, as required under Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) by 
ICSI: 

Nature of Appointment 

Retirement by rotation 
and seeking 
reappointment 

Retirement by rotation 
and seeking 
reappointment 

Name of the Director Mrs. Reshma Budhia Mr. Sudhanshu Budhia 

Director Identification 
number (DIN) 08893679 07115984 

Date of Birth and Age 09.12.1980, 44 Years 08.02.1978, 47 Years 

Date of first appointment on 
the Board 25.09.2020 15.01.2024 

Brief resume, Qualification, 
Experience and nature of 
expertise in specific 
functional areas 

With over 20 years of 
experience in the B2B 
space, she is an expert at 
building persona-based 
marketing campaigns to 
deliver high-impact sales 
results. 
Qualification: MBA 
(Marketing), Certified 
Design Thinking 
Specialist and PG 
Diploma in Innovation & 
Design Thinking 

Experienced and results-
driven Director with a 
proven track record in 
developing and executing 
successful strategies. 
Qualification: Bachelor of 
Engineering 

No. of Board meetings 
attended during the year as 
Director 

All the meetings held 
during the financial year 
2024-2025 

All the meetings held 
during the financial year 
2024-2025 
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Nature of Appointment 

Retirement by rotation 
and seeking 
reappointment 

Retirement by rotation 
and seeking 
reappointment 

Memberships/Chairmanships 
of committees of the Board of 
the Company 

Nil 

Member of Audit 
Committee, Nomination 
& Remuneration 
Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee. 

Directorships held in listed 
entities (along with listed 
entities from which the 
person resigned in the past 
three years) 

She does not hold any 
Directorship in any other 
listed entity. She has not 
resigned from any listed 
entities during the past 
three years 

He does not hold any 
Directorship in any other 
listed entity. He has not 
resigned from any listed 
entities during the past 
three years 

Memberships/Chairmanships 
of Committees of other 
Boards 

Nil Nil 

Remuneration last drawn 
Rs. 32.47 Lakhs per 
annum Nil 

Remuneration sought to be 
paid 

Remuneration as 
discussed by the board Nil 

Skills and capabilities 
Design Thinking 
Specialist, Author, B2B 
Growth Consultant etc. 

Strategic planning, team 
leadership, finance etc. 

Shareholding in the Company 5,54,400 Equity Shares Nil 

Relationship with other 
Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company 

Wife of Mr. Sudhanshu 
Budhia 

Husband of Mrs. Reshma 
Budhia 
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Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the 
Annual Report will also be available on the Company's website www.tossthe.co.in for 
download. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The physical copies of such 
documents will also be available at the Company's registered office in Chennai for 
inspection during normal business hours on working days. 
In case any member is desirous of obtaining physical copy of the Annual Report for 
the financial year 2024-25 and Notice of the AGM of the Company, may send request 
to the company via email at cs@tossthe.co.in mentioning DP ID and Client ID or raise 
a service request with MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly Link Intime India 
Private Limited), Company’s RTA at https://web.in.mpms.mufg.com/helpdesk/Service 
Request.html. 
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Board’s Report to the Shareholders 

The Directors have pleasure in submitting the Fifth Annual Report on the business 
and operations of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended  
March 31, 2025. 

1. Financial Summary or Highlights / Performance of the Company: 
 (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Total income 884.22 495.53 

Less: Total expenditure 715.94 351.83 

Less: Prior Period Item – (0.32) 

Profit before tax 168.28 143.38 

Current Tax 45.14 38.24 

Deferred tax (2.37) (0.58) 

Profit after tax 125.51 105.72 

During the financial year (FY) 2024-2025, the company has achieved a total income 
of 884.22 lakhs as compared to 495.53 lakhs in the financial year 2023-2024. The 
profit before tax for 2024-2025 stood at 168.28 lakhs compared to 143.38 lakhs in 
the financial year 2023-2024. The profit after tax for 2024-2025 stood at 125.51 lakhs 
compared to 105.72 lakhs in the financial year 2023-2024. 

2. Dividend and Reserves: 
In terms of Regulation 43A of the Listing Regulations the Board of the Company has 
adopted a Dividend Distribution Policy, which can be accessed on the website of the 
Company 
www.tossthe.co.in/assets/investor/2.%20Policies/4.%20Dividend%20Distribution%20
Policy.pdf. 
During the financial year 2025–26, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on May 
30th, 2025, approved the declaration of the first interim dividend of Rs. 0.50 per 
equity share of ₹10 each. Subsequently, at its meeting held on July 7th, 2025, the 
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Board approved the declaration of the second interim dividend of Rs. 2.50 per equity 
share of ₹10 each. 
In view of the aforesaid interim dividends, the Board does not propose to 
recommend any final dividend for the year under review. 
The Company did not have any amounts due or outstanding as on the Balance Sheet 
date to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 
The Board of Directors has not proposed any transfer to the General Reserve for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2025, and has recommended that the entire profits 
for the year be retained in the Profit and Loss Account. 

3. Nature of Business & Change in Business: 
The Company is carrying on the business as marketing consulting firm that offers  
go-to-market strategies to organizations of all sizes - from a startup to large 
corporations to equip them to go after their pursuits. There is no change in the 
nature of business during the year under review. 
Conversion: 
The Company was converted from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited 
Company vide resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 
10.02.2024 and the same was approved by the Registrar of Companies, Chennai on 
05.04.2024. Accordingly the name of the Company was changed from “Toss the Coin 
Private Limited” to “Toss the Coin Limited” and the CIN was changed from 
U72900TN2020PTC138199 to U72900TN2020PLC138199. 
Listing: 
The Equity Shares of Toss The Coin Limited (Scrip Code: 544303) were Listed under 
SME on the Bombay Stock Exchange with effect from 17th December 2024. The 
Company had filed the Change Request Form with the Registrar of Companies for 
updating the CIN pursuant to listing and accordingly the CIN was updated from 
U72900TN2020PLC138199 to L72900TN2020PLC138199. 
The Company has paid the Listing Fees for the financial year 2025-26. 
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4. Material Changes and Commitments: 
There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of 
the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report. 

5. Details of Significant and Material Orders Passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals Impacting the Going Concern 
Status and Company’s Operations in future: 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

6. Details of Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associate Companies and 
Performance thereof: 

During the year under review,  
a) No significant or material orders were issued by regulators, courts, or tribunals 

against the Company that would affect its going concern status or future 
operations. 

b) The Company did not initiate any applications, nor did it have any pending 
proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

c) The Company did not require valuation for one-time settlements or while 
obtaining loans from banks / financial institutions at any point during the 
period under review. 

7. Deposits: 
The Company has not accepted nor renewed any deposits falling within the purview 
of section 73 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, during the year under the review and 
therefore details mentioned in Rule 8(5)(v) & (vi) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 relating to deposits covered under chapter V is not required to be given. 

8. Auditors and their Reports: 
a) Statutory Auditors: 
The shareholders at their Fourth Annual General Meeting dated 14.06.2024 had 
approved the appointment of M/s. CNGSN & Associates LLP., Chartered Accountants, 
Chennai, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years i.e, from 
the conclusion of the Fourth AGM till the conclusion of the Ninth AGM of the 
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Company to be held in the year 2029. The Statutory Auditors have confirmed their 
eligibility and qualification under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
framed there under for holding office as Statutory Auditors of the Company. 
The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, or adverse 
remark on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025. The 
Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 
b) Secretarial Auditors:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. Chetan 
Bafna and Co, Practicing Company Secretaries, were appointed as the Secretarial 
Auditors to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the year under review. The Secretarial 
Audit report pursuant to the Act read with Rules made thereunder and Regulation 
24A of the Listing Regulations for the year under review in prescribed Form MR – 3 is 
annexed to this Report as “Annexure – A”.  
The Secretarial Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, or 
adverse remarks for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025.  
Further the Board of Directors at their meeting dated 25.04.2025 had appointed M/s. 
Chetan Bafna and Co, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors to 
conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2025-26. 

c) Internal Auditors:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act and the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, M/s. Pranaav Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountants, were appointed 
as the Internal Auditors to conduct the audit for the year under review. 
The Internal Auditor of the Company reports functionally to the Audit Committee of 
the Company, which reviews and approves risk based annual internal audit plan. The 
Audit Committee periodically reviews the performance of internal audit function. The 
recommendations of the internal audit team on improvements required in the 
operating procedures and control systems are also presented to the Audit 
Committee, for the teams to use these tools to strengthen the operating procedures. 
Further the Board of Directors at their meeting dated 07.07.2025 had appointed M/s. 
Ashok Golechha & Co, Chartered Accountants, as the Internal Auditors of the 
Company for the financial year 2025-26. 
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9. Share Capital: 
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 15,00,000/- 
(Rupees Fifteen Lakhs) to Rs. 3,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Crores) by creation of 
28,50,000 (Twenty Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten 
Only) each vide resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held 
on 20.05.2024. 
Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on June 
14th, 2024, the Company issued 12,60,000 (Twelve Lakhs Sixty Thousand) bonus 
equity shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each to the existing equity shareholders, in 
the ratio of 10 (Ten) fully paid-up equity shares for every 1 (One) fully paid-up equity 
share held. 
In accordance with the special resolution passed at the Extraordinary General 
Meeting held on June 5th, 2024, and pursuant to the Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) of 
the Company, which opened for subscription on December 10th, 2024, and closed on 
December 12th, 2024, a total of 5,04,000 (Five Lakhs Four Thousand) equity shares of 
face value ₹10 (Rupees Ten only) each were allotted at a price of Rs. 182 per equity 
share (including a premium of Rs. 172 per equity share). 
Further the Company has not issued Sweat Equity Shares, Employee Stock Option 
and not called for Buy back of Shares during the current financial year.  

10. Extract of the Annual Return: 
Pursuant to the amendments to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act read 
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the 
Annual Return (Form MGT-7) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, will be 
made available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at 
www.tossthe.co.in/investor. 

11. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

The Company is committed to sustainable growth, and it recognizes energy 
conservation as a critical component of the environmental stewardship. The 
Company’s efforts are aligned with national and global goals to reduce carbon 
emissions, improve energy efficiency, and promote sustainable operational practices. 
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The Company being into the business of Marketing Consultancy, over the past 
several years has significantly accelerated its organization-wide efforts in absorbing 
and deploying deep technologies with the help of applications such as Adobe 
Creative Cloud, Adobe Stock, Freepik, Shutterstock, Figma, Envato, Canva, SharePoint, 
Mid Journey etc. 
Details of foreign earnings and outgo during the year are as follows: 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency 19.77 25.69 

Earning in Foreign Currency 524.44 285.94 

12. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”):
The Company is currently managed by the following Board of Directors and KMP: 
1. Mr. Narayanan Jayan – Chairman Managing Director
2. Mrs. Reshma Budhia – Whole Time Director cum CFO
3. Mr. Sudhanshu Budhia – Non Executive Director
4. Mr. Manish Kumar Gupta – Independent Director
5. Mr. Mohan Varghese Mathew – Independent Director
6. Mrs. Pooja Jain – Company Secretary (CS)

Appointments: 

Mr. Manish Kumar Gupta (DIN: 03568502) and Mr. Mohan Varghese Mathew (DIN: 
00629587) were appointed as Independent Directors of the Company vide resolution 
passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 20.05.2024. 
Mrs. Reshma Budhia (DIN: 08893679) was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) of the Company vide resolution passed at the meeting of Board of Directors of 
the Company held on 27.05.2024. 
Mrs. Pooja Jain (PAN: AWVPJ0512H) was appointed as the Company Secretary (CS) of 
the Company vide resolution passed at the meeting of Board of Directors of the 
Company held on 27.05.2024. 



 

Annual Report 2024 - 25Toss The Coin Ltd    69 

Change in Designations: 
The Designation of Mr. Narayanan Jayan (DIN: 08893678), was changed from 
Director to Chairman cum Managing Director (CMD) of the Company vide special 
resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company held 
on 05.06.2024. 
The Designation of Mrs. Reshma Budhia (DIN 08893679), was changed from Director 
to Whole Time Director (WTD) cum CFO of the Company vide special resolution 
passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company held on 
05.06.2024. 
Directors liable to retire by rotation: 
Mrs. Reshma Budhia (DIN 08893679), Whole Time Director cum CFO is liable to retire 
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, being eligible offers herself for 
re-appointment. 
Mr. Sudhanshu Budhia (DIN 07115984), Director is liable to retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting, being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
Necessary resolution for the re-appointment of Directors liable to retire by rotation is 
being placed for approval of the members at the AGM. The board recommends their 
re-appointment as Directors of the Company.  
None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified as per the provisions of 
Section 164 of the Act. The Directors of the Company have made necessary 
disclosures under Section 184 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

13. Management Discussion & Analysis Report: 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, a Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report is attached as Annexure - B. 

14. Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors: 
Seventeen Board Meetings were held during the year under review and the gap 
between two meetings were not more than 120 days, the details of meetings and 
attendance are as follows: 
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Date 

Mr. 
Narayanan 

Jayan 

Mrs. 
Reshma 
Budhia 

Mr. 
Sudhanshu 

Budhia 

Mr. Manish 
Kumar 
Gupta 

Mr. Mohan 
Varghese 
Mathew 

05.04.2024 Present Present Present -NA -NA 

11.05.2024 Present Present Present -NA -NA 

24.05.2024 Present Present Present Granted 
LOA 

Granted 
LOA 

27.05.2024 Present Present Present Present Present 

30.05.2024 Present Present Present Granted 
LOA 

Granted 
LOA 

18.06.2024 Present Present Present Present Present 

08.07.2024 Present Present Present Granted 
LOA 

Granted 
LOA 

23.07.2024 Present Present Present Present Present 

09.09.2024 Present Present Present Present Present 

07.10.2024 Present Present Present Granted 
LOA 

Granted 
LOA 

14.11.2024 Present Present Present Granted 
LOA 

Granted 
LOA 

03.12.2024 Present Present Present Present Present 

09.12.2024 Present Present Present Granted 
LOA 

Granted 
LOA 

13.12.2024 Present Present Present Present Present 

17.12.2024 Present Present Present Granted 
LOA 

Granted 
LOA 

27.12.2024 Present Present Present Granted 
LOA Present 

26.03.2025 Present Present Present Present Present 
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15. Particulars of loans, Guarantees or Investments Under Section 186: 
The Company has not advanced any loans, given any guarantees or made any 
investments under Sec 186 of Companies Act, 2013. 

16. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties 
Under Sec 188(1) Companies Act 2013: 

There were no contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in  
sub-section (1) of Section 188.  Hence, Form AOC-2 pursuant to the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules 2014 is not required to be enclosed. 
The Company has adopted policy on Related Party Transactions and can be accessed 
on the Company’s website at 
www.tossthe.co.in/assets/investor/2.%20Policies/7.%20Related%20Part%20Transactio
n%20Policy.pdf. 

17. Particulars of Remuneration to Director and Employees: 
The remuneration paid to the directors is in accordance with the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy formulated in accordance with Section 178 of the Act and 
Regulation 19(4) read with Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force). 
Details of ratio of remuneration to each Director to the median employee’s 
remuneration and details of remuneration paid to employees is annexed to this 
report as “Annexure – C”. 

18. Risk Management Policy: 
The Company had identified certain business risks and also the measures for dealing 
with such risks which it faces in day to day operations of the Company. However the 
Company faces operational risks relating to people, process, legal environment and 
external factors, investment risk and regulatory risks. The Company manages these 
risks by prudently investing its funds, managing its people and complying with all the 
regulations. These risks are continuously reviewed and monitored by the 
management. The Board also reviews the risks and corrective actions and mitigation 
measures are taken as and when needed. 
The Company has adopted a Risk Management policy and can be accessed on the 
Company’s website at 
www.tossthe.co.in/assets/investor/2.%20Policies/8.%20Risk%20Management%20Poli
cy.pdf 
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19. Directors Responsibility Statement: 
Pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Director report state 
that: 
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 

have been followed and that no material departures have been made for the 
same. 

b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, and 
have made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 
2025 and of the Profits of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

c) proper and sufficient care have been taken for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities. 

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively. 

20. Declaration by Independent Directors  
Both the Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence, as 
required pursuant to section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they 
meet the criteria of independence as laid down section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013. In the opinion of the board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions 
specified in the Act and the rules made there under for appointment as Independent 
Directors and confirm that they are independent of the management. 
None of the Independent / Non-Executive Directors have any pecuniary relationship 
or transactions with the Company which in the Judgement of the Board may affect 
the independence of the Directors. 
In terms of requirements under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 25 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 
26.03.2025. The Independent Directors at the meeting, inter alia, reviewed the 
following: 
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• Performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole. 
• Performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of 

Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. 
• Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 

Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to 
effectively and reasonably perform their duties.  

• Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 
Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to 
effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

All the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (‘IICA’) towards the inclusion of their names in 
the data bank and they meet the requirements of proficiency self-assessment test. 
The Company has received declarations of independence in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act as well as the LODR Regulations from all the Independent 
Directors 

21. Committees of the Board 
Currently, in line with the statutory requirement, the Board has the following 
committees: 
a) Audit Committee: 
Composition: 
The Committee as on 31st March 2025 comprised of the following Directors as its 
Members: 

Name of the Director Status in Committee 

Mr. Manish Kumar Gupta* Chairman 

Mr. Sudhanshu Budhia** Member 

Mr. Mohan Varghese Mathew  Member 

* Appointed as Chairman of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 
** Appointed as a Member of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 
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Mr. Narayanan Jayan (DIN: 08893678), had ceased to be the Chairman cum Member 
of the Committee with effect from 08.07.2024. 

Terms of Reference: 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee interalia include the following: 
1. Oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient 
and credible; 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of 
auditors of the listed entity; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors; 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's 
report thereon before submission to the board for approval; 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the half yearly financial statements before 
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to; 

• Matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be 
included in the board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 
134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

• Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
• Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment 

by management; 
• Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 

findings; 
• Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements; 
• Disclosure of any related party transactions; 
• Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report; 
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6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds 
raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the 
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 
making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this 
matter; 

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and 
effectiveness of audit process; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with 
related parties; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary; 
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 

adequacy of the internal control systems; 
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure 

of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there 
on; 

15. The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal 
control systems, the scope of audit, including the observations of the auditors 
and review of financial statement before their submission to the Board and may 
also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the 
management of the company. 

16.  Discussing with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the 
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of 
concern; 

17. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 
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18. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature 
and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of 
concern; 

19. The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in 
relation to the items specified in section 177(4) of Companies Act 2013 or 
referred to it by the Board. 

20. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) 
and creditors; 

21. To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 
22. Approving the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer (i.e. the whole time 

finance director or any other person heading the finance function) after assessing 
the qualifications, experience and background, etc., of the candidate; and; 

23. Audit committee shall oversee the vigil mechanism. 
24. Audit Committee will facilitate KMP/auditor(s) of the Company to be heard in its 

meetings.  
25. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the 

audit committee or containing into SEBI Listing Regulations 2015.  
Further, the Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following: 

a) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of 
operations; 

b) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit 
committee), submitted by management; 

c) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the  
statutory auditors; 

d) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
e) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor 

shall be subject to review by the audit committee.  
f) Statement of deviations: 
• Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if 

applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1). 
• Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the 

offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 
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Details of Meetings: 
The Committee met four times during year under review, the details of meetings and 
attendance are as follows: 

Date 

Mr. Manish 
Kumar 
Gupta* 

Mr. Sudhanshu 
Budhia** 

Mr. Mohan 
Varghese Mathew 

Mr. 
Narayanan 
Jayan*** 

18.06.2024 Present -NA Present Present 
09.09.2024 Present Present Present -NA 
27.12.2024 Granted LOA Present Present -NA 
26.03.2025 Present Present Present -NA 
* Appointed as Chairman of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 
** Appointed as a Member of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 
*** Ceased to be Chairman cum Member of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 

g) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
Composition: 
The Committee as on 31st March 2025 comprised of the following Directors as its 
Members: 

Name of the Director Status in Committee 
Mr. Manish Kumar Gupta* Chairman 
Mr. Sudhanshu Budhia** Member 
Mr. Mohan Varghese Mathew  Member 
* Appointed as Chairman of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 
** Appointed as a Member of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 

Mr. Narayanan Jayan (DIN: 08893678), had ceased to be the Chairman cum Member 
of the Committee with effect from 08.07.2024. 
Terms of Reference: 
The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee interalia 
include the following: 
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• Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and may be appointed in 
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the 
Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every 
director’s performance; 

• Formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the 
remuneration for directors, KMPs and other employees; 

• Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors 
and the board of directors; 

• Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 
• Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent 

director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent 
directors; 

• Determine our Company’s policy on specific remuneration package for the 
Managing Director / Executive Director including pension rights; 

• Decide the salary, allowances, perquisites, bonuses, notice period, severance fees 
and increment of Executive Directors; 

• Define and implement the Performance Linked Incentive Scheme (including ESOP 
of the Company) and evaluate the performance and determine the amount of 
incentive of the Executive Directors for that purpose. 

• Decide the amount of Commission payable to the Whole Time Directors; 
• Review and suggest revision of the total remuneration package of the Executive 

Directors keeping in view the performance of the Company, standards prevailing 
in the industry, statutory guidelines etc; and 

• To formulate and administer the Employee Stock Option Scheme. 
Details of Meeting: 
The Committee met on 27.12.2024 and the details of attendance are as follows: 
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Date 

Mr. Manish 
Kumar 
Gupta* 

Mr. Sudhanshu 
Budhia** 

Mr. Mohan 
Varghese Mathew 

Mr. 
Narayanan 
Jayan*** 

27.12.2024 Granted LOA Present Present -NA 
* Appointed as Chairman of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 
** Appointed as a Member of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 
*** Ceased to be Chairman cum Member of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 

h) Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
Composition: 
The Committee as on 31st March 2025 comprised of the following Directors as its 
Members: 

Name of the Director Status in Committee 

Mr. Manish Kumar Gupta* Chairman 

Mr. Sudhanshu Budhia** Member 

Mr. Mohan Varghese Mathew  Member 

* Appointed as Chairman of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 
** Appointed as a Member of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 

Mr. Narayanan Jayan (DIN: 08893678), had ceased to be the Chairman cum Member 
of the Committee with effect from 08.07.2024. 
Terms of Reference: 
The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee interalia include 
the following: 
• Allotment, transfer of shares including transmission, splitting of shares, changing 

joint holding into single holding and vice versa, issue of duplicate shares in lieu of 
those torn, destroyed, lost or defaced or where the space at back for recording 
transfers have been fully utilized. 
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• Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split / consolidation / 
renewal, etc.; 

• Review the process and mechanism of redressal of Shareholders’ / Investor’s 
grievance and suggest measures of improving the system of redressal of 
Shareholders’ / Investors’ grievances. 

• Non-receipt of share certificate(s), non-receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt 
of interest / dividend warrants, non-receipt of annual report and any other 
grievance / complaints with Company or any officer of the Company arising out 
in discharge of his duties. 

• Oversee the performance of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and also review 
and take note of complaints directly received and resolved them. 

• Oversee the implementation and compliance of the Code of Conduct adopted by 
the Company for prevention of Insider Trading for Listed Companies as specified 
in the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. 

• Any other power specifically assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company 
from time to time by way of resolution passed by it in a duly conducted Meeting, 
and 

• Carrying out any other function contained in the equity listing agreements as and 
when amended from time to time. 

Details of Meetings: 
The Committee met five times during the year under review, the details of meetings 
and attendance are as follows: 
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Date 

Mr. Manish 
Kumar 
Gupta* 

Mr. Sudhanshu 
Budhia** 

Mr. Mohan 
Varghese Mathew 

Mr. 
Narayanan 
Jayan*** 

18.06.2024 Present -NA Present Present 

09.09.2024 Present Present Present -NA 

13.12.2024 Present Present Present -NA 

27.12.2024 Present Present Present -NA 

26.03.2025 Present Present Present -NA 

* Appointed as Chairman of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 
** Appointed as a Member of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 
*** Ceased to be Chairman cum Member of the Committee with effect from 8th July 2024. 

22. Adequacy of internal Financial Controls with Reference to the 
financial statements: 

The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls to safeguard and 
protect from loss, unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions 
are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The Company is 
following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books 
of accounts and reporting financial statements. The Company confirms that there are 
proper and adequate internal control systems and procedures commensurate with its 
size and nature of its business for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business for safeguarding its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely 
preparation of reliable financial information. The Company has not noticed any major 
weakness in the internal financial control procedures. 

23. Board Evaluation: 
The Companies Act 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by 
the Board and Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 states that the performance 
evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, 
excluding the Director being evaluated. The performance of the Board was evaluated 
by the Board and after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of the 
criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board 
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processes, information flow, frequency of meetings and functioning etc. The 
performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board and after seeking inputs 
from the Committee Members. The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee reviewed the performance of the individual Directors on the basis of the 
criteria such as the contribution of the individual Director to the Board and 
Committee Meetings. The Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his 
role. In a separate Meeting of Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a 
whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated. 

24. Maintenance of Cost Records:  
The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of Cost Records under 
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Company. 

25. VIGIL Mechanism / Whistle-Blower Policy for Directors and 
Employees 

The Company has formulated a comprehensive Whistle-blower Policy in line with the 
provisions of Section 177(9) and Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 with a 
view to enable the stakeholders, including Directors, individual employees to freely 
communicate their concerns about illegal or unethical practices and to report 
genuine concerns to the Audit Committee of the Company. The mechanism provides 
adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors or employees who avail of the 
mechanism. The Vigil Mechanism has been placed in the website of the Company at 
www.tossthe.co.in/assets/investor/2.%20Policies/9.%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.
pdf. 

26. Disclosures as Required Under Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

The Company is dedicated to providing a healthy work environment to all 
employees, free from any form of prejudice or gender bias. In line with the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013, and the applicable rules Company has implemented a gender-neutral Policy for 
Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace (“POSH”) 
and constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (“ICC”). The Company has also 
established a grievance procedure for protection against victimization. 
The Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at 
Workplace is available on the website of the Company at 
www.tossthe.co.in/assets/investor/2.%20Policies/6.%20POSH%20Policy.pdf. 
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During the year under review, the Company had not received any compliant relating 
to sexual harassment at workplace. 

27. Secretarial Standards 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 118(10) of the Act, the Company complies with 
all applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards as issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India (“ICSI”). 

28. Code for Prevention of Insider Trading: 
In accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company has in place following policies / codes and the same are available in the 
website of the Company at www.tossthe.co.in/assets/investor/2.%20Policies/: 
• Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading 
• Fair Disclosure Policy 
• Code Of Business Conduct & Ethics for Director & Senior Management Executives 
• Policy on Determination of Materiality and Disclosure of Information 
These policies lays down guidelines advising the management, Designated Persons 
and other connected persons, on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be 
made by them while dealing with the shares of the Company, and while handling any 
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, cautioning them of the consequences of 
violations. 
In Compliance with the abovementioned Regulations, Structural Digital Database 
(SDD) was maintained by the Company and necessary entries were made to monitor 
and record the flow of sharing of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. Adequate 
training was provided to all employees on the compliance procedures provided in 
the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 
The Declaration on Code of Conduct is annexed to this report as “Annexure – D”. 

29. Other Disclosures: 
A New set of Articles of Association of the Company were adopted at the 
Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 05.06.2024 in pursuance to 
the IPO of the Company. 
During the year, there were no transactions requiring disclosure or reporting in 
respect of matters relating to: 
a) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise; 
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b) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company
under any scheme;

c) Raising of funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement;

d) Instance of one-time settlement with any bank or financial institution
e) Disclosures pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility
f) Proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

30. Acknowledgements:
Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their gratitude for all the 
guidance and co-operation received from all its clients, vendors, bankers, financial 
institutions, business associates, advisors, and regulatory and government 
authorities. Your Directors also take this opportunity to thank all its shareholders and 
stakeholders for their continued support and all the employees for their valuable 
contribution and dedicated service, with whose help, cooperation and hard work the 
Company is able to achieve the results. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For M /s. Toss The Coin Limited 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 16.08.2025  

-SD- 
Narayanan Jayan
Chairman cum  
Managing Director 
DIN: 08893678 

-SD-
Reshma Budhia 
Whole Time Director 
cum CFO
DIN: 08893679
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Annexure - A 

FORM NO. MR – 3  
Secretarial Audit Report 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of  
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)  

Rules, 2014] 
To, 
The Members, 
TOSS THE COIN LIMITED 
Door No.1A, Bheemanna Mudali Street,  
Alwarpet, Teynampet,  
Chennai – 600 018 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by TOSS THE COIN 
LIMITED (CIN: L72900TN2020PLC138199) (hereinafter called the “Company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon. 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 
(“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 
2025 according to the provisions of: 
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1. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and the Rules made thereunder, as amended 
from time to time; 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 
thereunder, as amended from time to time; 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder, 
as amended from time to time; 

4. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’), as amended from time to time: 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) 
Regulations, 2018; 

5. All other relevant applicable laws including those specifically applicable to the 
Company, a list of which has been provided by the management. The 
examination and reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether there 
are adequate systems and processes are in place to monitor and ensure 
compliance with those laws. 
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We report that, the following Regulations and Guidelines were not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period: 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits 
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of  
Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,2021; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021;  

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 2018-  

We further report that, the Company has no Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas 
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowing. 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
1. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

(‘ICSI’) and notified as on date; 
2. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (BSE) as 

per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 
We further report that the applicable financial laws, such as the Direct and Indirect 
Tax Laws, have not been reviewed under our audit as the same falls under the review 
of statutory audit by other designated professionals. 
During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned 
above to the extent where such records have been examined by us. 
We further report that: 
1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman 
Director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. 



 

Annual Report 2024 - 25Toss The Coin Ltd    88 

2. Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, 
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or 
as the case may be, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 

3. All the decisions at Board meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out 
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors 
or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

4. There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period: 
1. The Company was converted from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited 

Company vide resolution passed at the EGM held on 10th February, 2024 and the 
same was approved by the Registrar of Companies, Chennai on 5th April, 2024. 

2. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 15,00,000/- 
(Rupees Fifteen Lakhs) to Rs. 3,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Crores) by creation of 
28,50,000 (Twenty Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees 
Ten Only) each vide resolution passed at the EGM held on 20th May, 2024. 

3. The Company had declared 12,60,000 bonus shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) 
each pursuant to the special resolution passed at the AGM held on 14th June, 
2024, to the existing equity shareholders of the Company in the proportion of 10 
(Ten) new fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each for every 
1 (One) fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. 

4. In accordance to the special resolution passed by the shareholders of the 
Company at the EGM of the Company held on 5th June, 2024 and pursuant to the 
Initial Public Issue ("IPO") of the Company, which opened for Subscription on 10th 
December, 2024 and closed on 12th December, 2024, 5,04,000 Equity Shares of 
the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) were allotted at a price of Rs 182.00 
per Equity Share (including a premium of Rs. 172.00 per Equity Share). 

5. The Equity Shares of the Company were Listed under SME on the Bombay Stock 
Exchange with effect from 17th December, 2024 
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We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of: 
a) Public / Right / Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity etc.
b) Redemption / Buy-back of Securities.
c) Foreign technical collaborations.
d) Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction.
This report is to be read with our letter of even dated which is annexed as Annexure
– A and form an integral part of this report.

For Chetan Bafna and Co  
Practicing Company Secretaries 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 10.08.2025 

-SD-
  Chetan Kushalkumar Bafna 

Proprietor
M.No.A55464
C.P.No.21201

UDIN: A055464G000971918
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Annexure – A to Secretarial Audit Report: 

To, 
The Members, 
TOSS THE COIN LIMITED 
Door No.1A, Bheemanna Mudali Street,  
Alwarpet, Teynampet,  
Chennai – 600 018 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the management of 

the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial 
records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the 
Secretarial Records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and 
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
Books of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc. 

5. The compliances of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
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6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Chetan Bafna and CO  
Practicing Company Secretaries 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 10.08.2025 

-SD-
  Chetan Kushalkumar Bafna 

Proprietor
M.No.A55464
C.P.No.21201

UDIN: A055464G000971918
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Annexure - B 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
A) Global Economy: 
The global economy in 2025 is expected to see a slight increase in growth compared 
to previous forecasts, but persistent uncertainty and downside risks remain. Global 
growth is projected at 3.0 percent for 2025, with a further increase to 3.1 percent in 
2026, according to the International Monetary Fund. However, other sources indicate 
a slowdown, with some projecting growth as low as 2.3 percent.  
Here's a more detailed breakdown: 
a) Positive Factors: 

i) Slight Growth Revision: The IMF revised its global growth forecast upward, 
citing factors like front-loading ahead of tariffs, lower effective tariff rates, 
improved financial conditions, and fiscal expansion in some major economies.  

ii) Emerging Markets: Emerging markets and developing economies are 
expected to grow at a faster pace than advanced economies.  

iii) India's Rise: India is projected to be the world's fastest-growing major 
economy, potentially becoming the 4th largest global economy in 2025, 
according to PIB (Press Information Bureau).  

iv) South-South Trade: Increased trade among developing countries  
(South-South trade) is seen as a source of resilience.  

b) Negative Factors and Risks: 
i) Slowdown Concerns: Some sources, like the World Bank, suggest a significant 

slowdown, with growth projected at 2.3 percent in 2025.  
ii) Trade Tensions and Uncertainty: Heightened trade tensions and policy 

uncertainty remain key risks to global growth.  
iii) Inflation: While global inflation is expected to fall, US inflation is predicted to 

stay above target.  
iv) Weakening Trade: Merchandise trade dynamism is expected to fade, and 

some forecasts predict a significant drop in global trade.  
v) Policy Uncertainty: The World Bank highlights the potential for growth to be 

even lower if trade restrictions escalate or policy uncertainty persists.  
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c) Key Points to Consider: 
i) Diverging Forecasts: There is a divergence in growth forecasts, with some 

predicting a stronger outlook than others. 
ii) Geopolitical Risks: Geopolitical tensions and conflicts pose a significant threat 

to global growth. 
iii) Policy Responses: The effectiveness of policy responses to these challenges 

will be crucial in shaping the global economic landscape in 2025.  
In summary, the global economy in 2025 is facing a mixed outlook, with some 
positive signs of growth but also significant downside risks and uncertainties. The 
extent to which these risks materialize and how effectively policies are implemented 
will determine the ultimate trajectory of the global economy. 
B) Indian Economy: 
In 2025, the Indian economy is projected to remain the fastest-growing major 
economy globally, with a GDP growth rate of 6.2% to 6.8%. This growth is expected 
to be driven by strong domestic demand and a more benign global environment. 
India is also projected to become the world's fourth-largest economy, reaching a $4 
trillion milestone.  
a) Key Highlights: 

i) Fastest-Growing Major Economy: India is expected to maintain its position as 
the fastest-growing major economy, with projected GDP growth rates 
between 6.2% and 6.8%.  

ii) $4 Trillion Economy: India is on track to become a $4 trillion economy in 
2025.  

iii) Strong Domestic Demand: Continued growth is anticipated due to robust 
domestic consumption and investment.  

iv) Global Positioning: India is expected to solidify its position as a major global 
economic player, driven by domestic reforms and its vision of "Aatmanirbhar 
Bharat" (self-reliant India).  

v) Exports Surge: Exports are projected to increase, particularly in engineering 
goods, electronics, and pharmaceuticals, as well as in services.  

vi) Digital Transactions: Digital transactions, especially through UPI, are expected 
to continue their rapid growth.  
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vii) Inflation Management: Efforts to manage inflation are expected to keep it
within a reasonable range, with retail inflation potentially falling to 4.6%.

b) Factors Driving Growth:
i) Domestic Reforms: Government policies and reforms are expected to support

economic expansion.
ii) Global Economic Conditions: A more favorable global environment, including

a weaker US dollar and improved financial conditions, is anticipated to benefit
India.

iii) Digital Revolution: The ongoing digital transformation is expected to boost
productivity and efficiency across various sectors.

iv) Infrastructure Development: Investments in infrastructure projects are
expected to contribute to economic growth.

c) Potential Challenges:
i) Global Trade Uncertainties: While the global environment is expected to be

more benign, uncertainties related to trade and geopolitical tensions could
still pose challenges.

ii) Inflation Management: Maintaining inflation within the desired range will
require careful monitoring and policy interventions.

iii) External Demand: A slowdown in global growth could impact India's export
performance.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For M/s. Toss The Coin Limited 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 16.08.2025 

-SD- -SD-
 Narayanan Jayan Reshma Budhia 

Chairman cum  
Managing Director 

Whole Time Director  
cum CFO 

DIN: 08893678 DIN: 08893679



 

Annual Report 2024 - 25Toss The Coin Ltd    95 

Annexure - C 

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration  
(As per Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of  

The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)  
Rules, 2014 

A) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel 
to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2025 and percentage increase in remuneration 
compared to last financial year: 

Particulars 

Remuneration 
for the  

FY 24-25 
(in lakhs) 

% Increase in 
remuneration 
compared to  

last FY 

Ratio to 
median 

remuneration 
of 

employees* 
Chairman cum Managing 
Director 

   

Mr. Narayanan Jayan 32.47 81.82 4.64 
Whole Time Director cum 
CFO 

   

Mrs. Reshma Budhia 32.47 81.82 4.64 
Company Secretary    
Mrs. Pooja Jain** 5.00 – 0.71 

*Median remuneration for the FY 24-25 is Rs. 6.99,934/-. 
** Mrs. Pooja Jain was appointed as Company Secretary on 27th May, 2024. 

B) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2025: 

As on the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 there was an increase in the median 
remuneration by 3.83%. 
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C) No. of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2025:
As on the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 there were 48 permanent 
employees. 
D) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other

than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with
the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration:

During the Financial year, the average increase in salaries paid to employees other 
than managerial personnel was 19.29% and to the managerial personnel was 81.82%. 
E) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the

Company:
Your Company affirms that the remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel was as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For M/s. Toss The Coin Limited 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 16.08.2025 

-SD- -SD-
 Narayanan Jayan Reshma Budhia 

Chairman cum  
Managing Director 

Whole Time Director  
cum CFO 

DIN: 08893678 DIN: 08893679
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Annexure - D 

Declaration on Code of Conduct 
(Schedule V (D) to the Securities and Exchange Board of India  

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
As required by Schedule V (D) to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, it is hereby affirmed 
that all the Board Members and Senior Management personnel have complied with 
the Code of Conduct of the Company. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For M/s. Toss The Coin Limited 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 16.08.2025 

-SD- -SD-
 Narayanan Jayan Reshma Budhia 

Chairman cum  
Managing Director 

Whole Time Director  
cum CFO 

DIN: 08893678 DIN: 08893679
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To  
The Members, 
Toss The Coin Limited,  
Chennai  
For the year ended 31st March 2025 
Opinion  
We have audited the Financial Statements of Toss the Coin Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement of Profit and 
Loss, the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes to the Financial 
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.  
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2025, its profits and its cash flows for the year ended as on that date.  
Basis for opinion  
We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the  Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
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Key Audit Matters  
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be 
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Recognition of revenue from 
overseas customers and foreign 
currency risk on trade receivables  

Principal Audit Procedures  
• We evaluated the appropriateness of the 

Company’s revenue recognition policies 
with respect to export sales and tested 
their application.  

• We examined sample export invoices, 
shipping documents, and export 
proceeds realisation certificates to verify 
timing and amount of revenue 
recognised.  

• Verified the foreign exchange rates 
applied for sales and year-end receivables 
with RBI reference rates or bank 
realisation rates.  

• Performed ageing analysis of export 
receivables to assess recoverability and 
checked subsequent realisations.  

• Evaluated the classification and 
presentation of foreign currency 
receivables in the financial statements.   

• Verified compliance with AS 11 for year-
end translation of outstanding balances.  
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Accounting treatment of IPO 
proceeds and adjustment of IPO 
expenses against securities 
premium  

Principal Audit Procedures  
• We assessed the accounting treatment 

adopted for IPO proceeds and evaluated 
whether IPO expenses were appropriately 
adjusted against the securities premium.  

• Verified the reconciliation between actual 
funds raised through IPO and the entries 
passed in the books.  

• Reviewed the Board resolution and 
entries relating to utilisation of IPO funds.  

• Examined the supporting invoices for 
IPO-related expenses and tested whether 
they meet the criteria for adjustment 
against Securities  

• Premium as per Section 52 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.  

• Ensured the correct classification of IPO-
related transactions in equity and P&L. 

• Verified the disclosures in notes to 
financial statements and ensured 
compliance with SEBI ICDR norms and 
Companies Act.  

Capitalisation of internally 
developed software (intangible 
asset under development)  

Principal Audit Procedures  
• We assessed whether the costs 

capitalised towards internally developed 
software met the recognition criteria 
under AS 26 – Intangible Assets.  

• Obtained understanding of the nature 
and purpose of the software project 
under development.  

• Reviewed Board minutes, project 
documentation, and capitalisation policy.  
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

• Examined sample transactions capitalised 
as development costs, including payroll 
allocations, software tools, and consultant 
fees.  

• Evaluated whether the capitalised 
expenditure meets the recognition criteria 
such as technical feasibility, intention to 
complete, and ability to use the asset.  

• Ensured adequate disclosures are made 
under ‘Intangible assets under 
development’.  

First year audit considerations 
including opening balances and 
consistency with restated financials  

Principal Audit Procedures  
• Being the first year of our audit of the 

Company, we considered audit of 
opening balances and consistency with 
IPO restated financials as a matter of 
significance.  

• Compared current year opening balances 
with audited restated financials submitted 
during the IPO process.  

• Reconciled equity, reserves, and major 
balances to ensure no misstatement or 
inconsistency exists.  

• Tested major classes of assets and 
liabilities for carry-forward accuracy and 
proper classification.  

• Considered whether adequate disclosures 
were made in the financial statements 
regarding restated figures and basis of 
preparation.  
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Emphasis of Matter 
We draw attention to Note No. 4 to the Financial Statements which explains the fact 
that the Company was listed on the SME platform of Bombay Stock Exchange during 
the year, and these financial results are the first to be prepared and presented 
pursuant to such listing. The comparative figures for the previous year are as stated 
in the restated financial information included in the Prospectus issued in connection 
with the Company’s Initial Public Offering.  
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.   
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.  
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance opinion thereon.  
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.  
Management’s responsibility for the financial statements  
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 
(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the Accounting Standards (AS) prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended from 
time to time, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.  
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
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and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   
The management is responsible to ensure that the accounting software used by the 
Company for maintaining its books of account has the features of (a) recording an 
audit trail of each and every transaction and  (b) creating an edit log of each change 
made in the books of account along with the date when such changes are made. The 
management is also responsible to ensuring that the audit trail is not disabled.  
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.  
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.  
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:   
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
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involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our opinions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.  

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.  
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.   
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.   
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.  
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued 

by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure “A” a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit;  

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;  

c) The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss, and the statement of cash 
flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;  

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act; read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.  

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;  

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
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refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;   

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 
the Act; and  

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us: 

I. The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements;  

II. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards.  

III. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any foreseeable losses.  

IV. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,   
i. no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ‘Intermediaries’, with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and  
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ii. no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities 'Funding Parties', with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  

iii. Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us believe that the representations under  
sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.  

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in 
compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

VI. Based on the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for 
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. We also report that during 
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 
feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the 
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.  

For M/s. CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.004915S/ S200036 

-SD-  
E.K.SRIVATSAN  
Partner  
Membership No. 225064  
UDIN: 25225064BMJMQU8633 

Place: Chennai  
Date:30-05-2025  
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements’ section of our report to the members of Toss the Coin Limited of even 
date)  
i.  

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.  

b) We are informed that the company has formulated a programme for physical 
verification of all Property, Plant and equipment over a period of three years 
which, in our opinion is reasonable considering the size of the company and 
the nature of its assets. Accordingly, the Property, Plant and equipment have 
been physically verified by the management during the year and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.   

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of examination of record of the company, the company does not have any 
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the 
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee).Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) (c) of the order is not applicable to the 
company.  

d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the 
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) (d) of the Order is not applicable.  

e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company 
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3 
(i) (e) of the Order is not applicable.  

ii. The Company has no inventory. Hence provisions of this clause will not apply.  
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iii.
a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the

Company has not granted any loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships, or any other parties covered under Section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not provided any guarantees or given any security in
connection with a loan to any other entity during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

c) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not made any investments in, or granted any advances in the
nature of loans to, any companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or any
other parties during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

d) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company neither renewed nor extended any loans/granted fresh loans to
settle over dues of existing loans to any party. Accordingly, paragraph
3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

e) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans which
are repayable on demand, or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any
security to which the provisions of section 185 of the Act are not applicable.
The Company has not made any investments or given any loans to parties other
than those covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are not applicable

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not
applicable.
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vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central 
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Sec 148 
(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the services provided by it.  
Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.  

vii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us:  
a) Amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed 

statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' 
state insurance, income-tax, cess and other statutory dues have been 
generally regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate 
authorities.  

b) No undisputed amounts payable in respect of goods and services tax, 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material 
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable.  

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has no disputed statutory dues payable during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (vii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.  

viii In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
there are no transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order 
is not applicable.  

ix.  
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company has not obtained any loans or other borrowings from any lender 
during the year. Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (ix) (a) and 3 (ix) (d) of the Order 
are not applicable.  

b) The Company does not have any subsidiaries/ associates/ joint-ventures and 
accordingly, paragraphs 3 (ix) (e) and 3 (ix) (f) of the Order are not applicable.  
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x.  
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us 

and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has raised Rs. 9.17 crores during the year through an Initial Public Offering 
(IPO) on the SME platform on 17 December 2024.  The funds so raised have 
been, prima facie, applied for the purposes for which they were raised, 
pending full utilisation. As at the balance sheet date, the unutilised IPO 
proceeds have been temporarily parked in fixed deposits with scheduled 
banks. Based on the representations received from the management and our 
verification of relevant documents, we report that the Company intends to 
apply the said unutilized funds only for the objects stated in the offer 
document.  

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally 
convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order is 
not applicable.  

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us, based on the audit 
procedures performed by us and considering the principles of materiality outlined 
in Standards on Auditing, we report that:  
a) No fraud by the company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or 

reported during the year.  
b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and up to the date of this report.  

c) The company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year 
and up to the date of this report.  

xii The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, Paragraphs 3 (xii) of the 
Order is not applicable.  

xiii In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 
of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such transactions have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.  
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xiv  
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company has an internal audit system, commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business.  

b) The reports of the internal auditors for the year under audit were considered 
by us, as part of our audit procedures.  

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable.  

xvi.  
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.  

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing 
Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the 
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.  

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) 
(c) of the Order is not applicable.  

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have 
any other companies in the Group. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) (d) of the 
Order is not applicable.  

xvii The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the 
immediately preceding financial year.  

xviii During the year, the statutory auditors resigned on May 27, 2025, citing 
preoccupation as the reason. We have duly considered any issues, objections, or 
concerns, if any, raised by the outgoing auditors.  

xix In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation 
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the board of directors 
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and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date.  

xx. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not 
fulfill the criteria as specified under Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.  

xxi In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company does not have investments in subsidiaries/ associates or joint 
venture companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable. 

For M/s. CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.004915S/ S200036 

-SD-  
E.K.SRIVATSAN  
Partner  
Membership No. 225064  
UDIN: 25225064BMJMQU8633 

Place: Chennai  
Date:30-05-2025  
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Toss the Coin Limited of even 
date)  
Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of 
sub - section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Toss the 
Coin Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of 
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.  
Auditors’ responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those standards and the guidance note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.  
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control 
system over financial reporting.  
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;   
(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.  
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Opinion  
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.  

For M/s. CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.004915S/ S200036 

-SD-  
E.K.SRIVATSAN  
Partner  
Membership No. 225064  
UDIN: 25225064BMJMQU8633 

Place: Chennai  
Date:30-05-2025  
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data or as stated)

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 3 189.00    12.60   
Reserves and Surplus 4 1,109.31    424.66    
Total 1,298.31    437.26    

Non-current liabilities
Long-term Borrowings 5 -    -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6 -    -   
Other Non-current liabilities 7 -    -   
Long-term Provisions 8 14.30   13.38   
Total 14.30   13.38   

Current liabilities
Short-term Borrowings 9 -    -   
Trade Payables 10

- Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 0.81  -   
- Due to Others 27.00   -   

Other Current Liabilities 11 37.08   24.97   
Short-term Provisions 8 45.18   38.24   
Total 110.07    63.21   

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,422.68    513.85    

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

-Property, Plant and Equipment 12 61.90   12.19   
-Intangible Assets -    -   
-Capital Work-in-progress -    -   
-Intangible Assets under Development 13 26.84   -   

Non-current Investments 14 -    -   
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 5.56  1.58     
Other Non-current Assets 15 128.91    31.56   
Total 223.21    45.33   

Current assets
Inventories 16 -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents 17 880.67    312.68    
Short-term Loans and Advances 18 -    -   
Trade Receivables 19 189.21    112.34    
Other Current Assets 20 129.59    43.50   

1,199.47    468.52    

Total Assets 1,422.68    513.85    

Significant accounting policies & Notes to accounts 1 & 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
for CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 04915S/S200036

 -SD- -SD- -SD- -SD-

E K Srivatsan Reshma Budhia Narayanan Jayan Pooja Jain
Partner WTD / CFO Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 225064 DIN: 08893679 DIN: 08893678 M.No: A61974

Place: Chennai Place: Chennai Place: Chennai Place: Chennai
Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Toss The Coin Limited
[CIN: L72900TN2020PLC138199]
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Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data or as stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

INCOME
Revenue from Operations 21 864.86  486.19   
Other Income 22 19.36    9.34   
Total Income 884.22  495.53   

Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 23 -    -  
Change in Inventories of work in progress and finished goods 24 -    -  
Employee Benefit Expenses 25 446.54  238.39   
Finance Costs 26 -    0.00   
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 12 19.02    7.21   
Other Expenses 27 250.38  106.23   
Total expenses 715.94  351.83   

Profit/(Loss) before Extraordinary Items and Tax 168.28  143.70   
Prior Period Item -    (0.32)  
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 168.28  143.38   
Tax Expenses

-Current Tax 45.14    38.24     
-Deferred Tax (2.37)     (0.58)  

42.77    37.66     
Profit/(Loss) for the period 125.51  105.72   

Earnings Per Share (Face Value per Share Rs.10 each)
-Basic (In Rs) 8.17  7.63   
-Diluted (In Rs) 8.17  7.63   

Significant accounting policies & Notes to accounts 1 & 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
for CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 04915S/S200036

 -SD-  -SD-  -SD- -SD-

E K Srivatsan Reshma Budhia Narayanan Jayan Pooja Jain
Partner WTD / CFO Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 225064 DIN: 08893679 DIN: 08893678 M.No: A61974

Place: Chennai Place: Chennai Place: Chennai Place: Chennai
Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Toss The Coin Limited
[CIN: L72900TN2020PLC138199]



Annual Report 2024 - 25Toss The Coin Ltd    119 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025 
Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data or as stated)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash Flows from Operating Activities (A)

Net Profit before Taxation and Extraordinary Items 168.28   143.70     
Adjustment For Non-cash and Non-operating Items

Depreciation 19.02     7.21     
Accounts Written Off 0.84   0.42     
Loss/(Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets/Investments 0.08   -     
Provision for doubtful Trade Receivables 0.91   -     
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Gratuity 7.93   5.88     
Finance Costs -      0.00     
Interest Income (19.34)     (9.34)      

Operating Profit before working capital changes 177.72   147.87  

Working Capital Changes
Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables 27.81     -    
Increase/(decrease) in Other Liabilities 12.11     1.72  
(Increase)/decrease in Loans and Advances -     -    
(Increase)/decrease in Trade Receivables (77.78)    (40.85)   
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories -     -    
(Increase)/decrease in Other Assets (92.04)    (2.94)     

Cash Generated from Operations 47.82     105.80  

Direct Taxes Paid (33.12)    (28.20)   
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities 14.70     77.60    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities (B)
Payment towards capital expenditure (including CWIP) (26.84)    -    
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (68.81)    (5.10)     
(Increase)/Decrease in Non-Current Investments -     -    
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Bank Balances (Current) (304.46)  111.52  
Decrease/(Increase) in Long-Term Loans and Advances -     -    
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non Current Assets (97.35)    (17.66)   
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets -     -    
Interest Income 19.34     9.34  
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (478.12)  98.10    

Cash Flows from Financing Activities (C)
Interest Cost -     (0.00)     
Proceeds of Share application money 917.28   -    
Expenses incurred towards Public Issue (127.33)  -    
Dividends paid (Including DDT) (63.00)    (25.20)   
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities 726.95   (25.20)   

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [A+B+C] 263.53   150.50  

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 291.70   141.20  
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 555.23   291.70  

Cash-in-hand 3.02   5.52  
Bank balances

- in Current Accounts 205.91   244.17  
- in Deposit Accounts 346.30   42.01    

Bank Overdraft -     -    

Total 555.23   291.70  

Significant accounting policies & Notes to accounts 1 & 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
for CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 04915S/S200036

-SD- -SD- -SD- -SD-

E K Srivatsan Reshma Budhia Narayanan Jayan Pooja Jain
Partner WTD / CFO Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 225064 DIN: 08893679 DIN: 08893678 M.No: A61974

Place: Chennai Place: Chennai Place: Chennai Place: Chennai
Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Toss The Coin Limited
[CIN: L72900TN2020PLC138199]
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

Note 1 & 2 : Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts 
Corporate Information 
The Company is a Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) providing technical design, 
drafting, and documentation support services to business clients overseas. Its 
revenue is primarily export-based, billed in foreign currency.  
During the year, the Company successfully completed an Initial Public Offering (IPO) 
and its equity shares were listed on an SME exchange in India. The financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared for the first time 
as a listed company, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework 
described below. 
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost convention and accrual 
basis of accounting, in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
in India (Indian GAAP). These statements comply with the applicable Accounting 
Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules and the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has presented the 
financial statements as per the format prescribed under Schedule III -Division I of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (applicable to non-Ind AS companies). 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III. The 
operating cycle for the Company’s business (technical services) is considered to be 
12 months. All figures are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and have been rounded 
off to the nearest hundreds, unless otherwise stated. 
Use of Estimates and Judgments 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and 
expenses. Key areas involving critical estimates include useful lives of depreciable 
assets, impairment assessments, employee benefit obligations, taxes, provisions, etc. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Management reviews estimates 
periodically and appropriate changes are made to the accounting policies or 
reported amounts in the period in which the revisions are known. Any material 
changes in estimates are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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Revenue Recognition 
Service Revenue: 

The Company’s revenue comprises income from technical design, drafting, and 
documentation support services provided to clients. Revenue from rendering of 
services is recognized as and when the services are rendered, and where applicable, 
when related costs are incurred, in accordance with the terms of the contracts with 
clients. This generally corresponds to recognition on a proportionate completion 
basis or as per the achievement of performance milestones, since the service 
contracts are primarily time-based or deliverable-based. Revenue is recognized only 
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and there is no significant uncertainty 
regarding collection. Export sales (services provided to overseas clients) are initially 
recorded at the exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Amounts billed to 
clients are exclusive of any indirect taxes (e.g. GST) as applicable, since export 
services are usually zero-rated for GST. 
Interest Income: 

Interest income (for example, on bank deposits or other financial assets) is 
recognized on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest rate method, 
considering the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. This ensures 
that income is recognized on a accrual basis over time, in line with the underlying 
instrument’s terms. 
The Company’s business does not involve sale of goods; hence revenue primarily 
consists of service income. There are no other significant operating revenues. Any 
other income, such as income from export incentives or miscellaneous services, is 
accounted for on accrual basis when the right to receive the income is established 
and no significant uncertainty exists. 
Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 
Since a substantial portion of the Company’s revenue is denominated in foreign 
currency, the following policies are applied for foreign currency transactions in 
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 11: 



Annual Report 2024 - 25Toss The Coin Ltd    122 

• Initial Recognition: Foreign currency transactions (income, expenses, assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the Company’s functional
currency, INR) are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the
date of the transaction. For practical purposes, an approximate rate that reflects
the actual rate on the date (such as an average rate for the week or month in
which the transaction occurs, if rates do not fluctuate significantly) may be used.

• Conversion at Year-End: Monetary items (such as foreign currency denominated
receivables, payables, bank balances) outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date
are translated at the closing exchange rate (the rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date). Non-monetary items (such as fixed assets, intangible assets, or
investments) that are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange
rate on the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently revalued.

• Exchange Differences: Exchange differences arising on settlement of foreign
currency transactions, or on translation of monetary assets and liabilities at the
year-end rates, are recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they arise. For example, any gain or loss on
realization of export receivables due to exchange rate fluctuation is recorded in
the period of realization as part of other income or finance costs (as applicable).

• Forward Contracts: The Company may enter into forward exchange contracts or
other derivative contracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure. Such contracts, if
not intended for trading or speculative purposes, are accounted for as follows:
o The premium or discount on the forward contract (i.e. the difference between

the forward rate and the spot rate on the date of the contract) is amortized as
expense or income over the life of the contract. The exchange differences on
the forward contract are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
reporting period along with the exchange differences on the underlying item.
Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange
contracts is also recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. (Derivative
contracts not intended as hedges or that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are marked-to-market and resulting losses are charged to income; gains, if
any, are ignored per prudence principle.)

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 
Recognition and Measurement: Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of 
acquisition or construction, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if 
any. Cost includes purchase price and any directly attributable costs to bring the 
asset to its working condition for its intended use (such as freight, duties and taxes 
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net of tax credits, installation expenses, site preparation costs, professional fees for 
architects/engineers for building construction, etc.). Subsequent expenditures related 
to PPE are capitalized only if they increase the future economic benefits from the 
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. Borrowing costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets (that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for intended use) are 
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset, as described in the Borrowing Costs 
policy. Other repairs and maintenance costs, which do not add to the asset’s utility or 
longevity, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 
Capital Work-in-Progress:  
Assets in the course of construction or development (if any) are carried at cost as 
Capital Work-in-Progress until they are ready for their intended use, at which point 
they are capitalized as PPE. No depreciation is charged on capital work-in-progress. 
Depreciation 
Depreciation on PPE is provided on a systematic basis over the useful life of the 
asset, reflecting the manner in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by 
the Company. The Company provides depreciation on its tangible assets using the 
straight-line method (SLM) over the estimated useful lives of the assets. These useful 
lives are in line with those prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, 
unless a different useful life is justified on technical evaluation. 
• Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is available for 

use (i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to operate as 
intended) until the date the asset is disposed or de-recognized. 

• The residual value, useful life, and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed at 
each financial year-end and adjusted if expectations differ from previous 
estimates. Any change in estimate is accounted for prospectively over the 
remaining useful life of the assets. 

• Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated at 100% in the year of 
purchase (i.e., fully expensed in the year of acquisition), as permitted by Schedule 
II, since such assets are not material individually. 

Depreciation on additions to assets or on disposals during the year is provided on a 
pro-rata basis according to the period of use. When assets are sold or retired, their 
cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the financial statements, and 
any resulting gain or loss is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss for that 
period. 
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Intangible Assets 
Recognition and Measurement: Intangible assets (if any) are stated at cost of 
acquisition (or development) less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. 
Intangible assets include identifiable non-monetary assets without physical 
substance, such as software licenses, patents, copyrights or technical know-how, that 
are expected to provide future economic benefits to the Company. Internally 
generated intangible assets (like development costs) are recognized if they meet the 
criteria under AS 26 (for example, technical feasibility, intention and ability to use, 
probable future benefits, etc.); otherwise, such research and development 
expenditures are charged to the Profit and Loss as incurred. 
Amortization: Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives, which are determined based on the nature of the asset and 
the expected benefit period, subject to a maximum of 10 years as per AS 26 (if the 
useful life cannot be reliably estimated, it is taken as 10 years). For instance, 
computer software is amortized over a period of 3 years (reflecting its typically short 
life cycle), unless a longer or shorter period is more appropriate based on expected 
usage or contractual rights. Amortization begins when the asset is available for use 
and continues until the asset is fully amortized or retired. The amortization period 
and method are reviewed at each year-end and adjusted if required on a prospective 
basis. 
Impairment of Assets 
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication 
that a tangible or intangible asset may be impaired (i.e., its carrying amount may not 
be fully recoverable). Indicators include factors like significant decline in market 
value, obsolescence or physical damage, adverse changes in industry or economic 
conditions, or continuous underperformance of the asset. If any such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 
• Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price (fair value less

costs to sell) and its value in use (present value of future cash flows expected to
arise from continued use of the asset and its disposal at end of life). The
evaluation is done on an individual asset basis or, if the asset does not generate
largely independent cash flows, on the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the
asset belongs.



 

Annual Report 2024 - 25Toss The Coin Ltd    125 

• If the carrying amount of an asset (or CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, an 
impairment loss is recognized for the difference. Impairment losses are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the impairment is 
identified. 

• After recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation/amortization charge for 
the asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying 
amount (less any residual value) over its remaining useful life. 

• If there is a subsequent increase in recoverable amount of an asset (other than 
goodwill) that was previously impaired, the previously recognized impairment 
loss is reversed to the extent of the increase in recoverable amount, but not 
exceeding the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of 
depreciation/amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset 
in prior years. Such reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. (Impairment losses on goodwill, if any, are not reversed.) 

Leases 
The Company’s policy on accounting for leases is in accordance with AS 19 -Leases. 
Leases of assets are classified as either finance leases or operating leases based on 
the extent to which risks and rewards of ownership of the asset lie with the Company 
(lessee) or with the lessor, at the inception of the lease. 
• Finance Leases: Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership to the Company are classified as finance leases. In such cases, the 
Company capitalizes the leased asset as an asset on its Balance Sheet and a 
corresponding lease liability is recorded. The asset is recorded at the lower of (a) 
the fair value of the leased asset at the inception of the lease, and (b) the present 
value of the minimum lease payments over the lease term. The asset is 
depreciated over its expected useful life on the same basis as owned assets (or 
over the lease term, if shorter, if ownership is not expected to transfer to the 
Company at the end of the lease). The finance charge (interest element) in the 
lease payment is recognized as finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability. 

• Operating Leases: Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of 
ownership are retained by the lessor (i.e. not substantially transferred to the 
lessee) are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating 
lease are recognized as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term (unless the payments are structured to increase in 
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line with expected general inflation or another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern of benefit). For example, office premises and 
equipment taken on cancellable short-term leases are treated as operating leases, 
and rentals are charged to expense as incurred. 

Investments 
Investments are classified into current and long-term investments based on 
management’s intent at the time of purchase. Long-term investments are those 
which are intended to be held for more than one year from the date of acquisition 
(or are strategic in nature), whereas current investments are those which are intended 
to be held for not more than one year, and are typically held for the purpose of 
being readily converted into cash to meet short-term needs. 
• Long-term investments (such as investments in bonds, or securities of other

companies) are carried at cost. However, if there is a decline in the value of a
long-term investment, other than temporary in nature, the carrying amount is
written down to the revised value to recognize the loss. The determination of
“other than temporary” diminution is made by considering factors such as the
extent and duration of the decline, the financial health and near-term prospects
of the issuer, and the intent/ability of the Company to retain the investment for a
period sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery. Any reduction in carrying
amount is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the value of such
investments subsequently appreciates and the appreciation is objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the increase is not
reversed in the accounts (consistent with prudence).

• Current investments (such as investments in mutual funds, short-term debt
instruments, etc. that the Company intends to liquidate within a year) are carried
at the lower of cost and fair value on an individual investment basis. Fair value for
quoted investments is the market price (closing price on stock exchange or net
asset value in case of mutual funds) at the reporting date, and for unquoted
instruments is determined based on appropriate valuation techniques. If the fair
value is lower than the carrying cost, the difference is recognized as a provision
for diminution in value and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any
reduction in carrying value is reversed when the fair value rises subsequently, to
the extent of the original cost.
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On disposal of an investment, the difference between the carrying amount and the 
net sale proceeds is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as gain or loss on 
investment. Interest earned on bonds or deposits, and dividends earned on 
investments in shares, are recognized as income in accordance with the Revenue 
Recognition policy (i.e., interest on time-proportion basis, dividends when the right 
to receive is established). 
Employee Benefits 
The Company’s employee benefit schemes are accounted for in accordance with 
Accounting Standard (AS) 15 -Employee Benefits. The significant employee benefits 
and related accounting policies are as follows: 
• Short-Term Employee Benefits: Short-term benefits are those expected to be

settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the period in which
employees render the related service. This includes salaries, wages, bonus,
incentives, short-term compensated absences (like paid annual leave which is
expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months), and other allowances.
Short-term employee benefit obligations are recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the related service is rendered.
Liabilities for short-term benefits (like accrued salary, bonus, or unused leave that
is expected to be encashed within the year) are measured on an undiscounted
basis at the amounts expected to be paid.

• Defined Contribution Plans: Contributions to defined contribution schemes such
as Provident Fund and other social security funds are recognized as expense
when due, since the Company has no further obligation beyond making the
contributions. The Company contributes to the government-administered
provident fund on behalf of its employees as per the prescribed laws and
regulations. This provident fund plan is a defined contribution plan, as the
Company does not carry any further obligations beyond the periodic
contributions. The Company’s contributions to provident fund are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year to which they relate. Similarly,
contributions to employee state insurance (ESI) or pension schemes (if applicable)
are treated as defined contribution plans and expensed when accrued.

• Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity): The Company’s gratuity plan (a lump-sum
payment to employees on separation from the company, based on last drawn
salary and years of service, as per the Payment of Gratuity Act) is an unfunded
defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits under this plan is determined
using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) actuarial method. The Company obtains an
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actuarial valuation annually, as at the balance sheet date, to measure the present 
value of the gratuity obligation. Actuarial gains and losses (re-measurements 
arising from changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments) are 
recognized in full in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which they 
occur. The obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation. Past service cost (if any, arising from plan 
amendments or curtailments) is recognized immediately to the extent that the 
benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortized on a straight-line basis 
over the average period until the benefits become vested. Since the gratuity 
scheme is unfunded, there are no plan assets to offset the liability. The expenses 
for gratuity include the service cost (current and past, if any), interest cost 
(unwinding of discount on the obligation), and any actuarial gains or losses 
recognized. 

• Other Long-Term Employee Benefits (Leave Encashment): The Company provides 
for earned leave benefits which can be carried forward (accumulating 
compensated absences) and availed or encashed by employees in future periods. 
Leave encashment obligations that are long-term in nature (that is, not expected 
to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which 
employees render the related service) are treated as other long-term employee 
benefits. The liability for such leave is also actuarially determined (typically using 
the Projected Unit Credit method) at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and 
losses on long-term leave obligations are recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period in which they arise. On the other hand, leave encashment 
benefits that are expected to be settled fully within 12 months (for example, if the 
company’s policy requires mandatory encashment of unused leave at year-end or 
if leaves do not carry forward beyond the year) are classified as short-term 
benefits and are not discounted -the expense is recognized based on the amount 
of leave expected to be encashed, as the employees render service that gives 
them the entitlement. 

• Termination Benefits: If the Company were to incur obligations for termination 
benefits (e.g., as part of a redundancy or voluntary retirement scheme), those 
would be recognized at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw 
the offer of such benefits and when the Company recognizes costs for a 
restructuring that involves the payment of termination benefits. (As of the 
reporting date, no termination benefit scheme is in place.) 
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Each year, the management reviews the adequacy of the provisions for all employee 
benefit obligations and makes adjustments if necessary based on actuarial advice or 
other current information. The expenses related to defined benefit and other  
long-term plans are presented in the financial statements under “Employee Benefits 
Expense.” Disclosures as required by AS 15 (such as the actuarial assumptions, 
defined benefit obligation movements, etc.) are provided in the notes to accounts. 
Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs (such as finance charges in 
respect of finance leases, exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to interest costs, and other ancillary costs) that an entity incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds. Accounting for borrowing costs is done in 
accordance with AS 16 -Borrowing Costs: 
• Capitalization of Borrowing Costs: Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to 

the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as 
part of the cost of that asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time (generally, 12 months or more) to get ready for its 
intended use or sale. Examples might include construction of a new office 
building or development of certain large software projects. The capitalization of 
borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when (a) 
expenditures for the asset are being incurred; (b) borrowing costs are being 
incurred; and (c) activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended 
use or sale are in progress. Capitalization continues until the asset is substantially 
ready for use or sale. 

• Suspension and Cessation: Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during 
extended periods in which active development of the asset is interrupted. 
Capitalization ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the 
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete, or if the development is 
abandoned. 

• Other Borrowing Costs: Borrowing costs other than those eligible for capitalization 
(primarily, borrowing costs on short-term funds or on long-term funds when no 
qualifying asset is being developed) are recognized as an expense in the period in 
which they are incurred. For instance, interest on working capital loans used for 
day-to-day operations or on borrowings used to finance dividend payments, etc., 
is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as it accrues. 
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• In the current financial year, the Company has not constructed any qualifying
asset; hence, all borrowing costs (primarily interest on bank credit facilities) have
been expensed as incurred. If in future years the Company undertakes projects
requiring substantial construction periods financed by specific borrowings, the
policy above will be applied and such costs will be capitalized to the extent
appropriate.

Taxation (Current and Deferred Tax) 
Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss,. 
• Current Tax: Current tax is the amount of income tax payable on the taxable profit

for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. Taxable profit may differ from the profit as reported in the Statement
of Profit and Loss due to differences in recognition principles between tax laws
and accounting standards (such as depreciation rates, disallowances of certain
expenses, etc.). Current tax is calculated using the applicable tax rates and tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted as of the reporting date. Any adjustments
to tax payable in respect of previous years (for example, due to assessments or
tax disputes settled) are recognized in the year in which the outcomes are
determined. The Company also evaluates any available tax incentives or
exemptions (like benefits for export profits or deductions for employment of new
employees under Section 80JJAA, etc.) in determining the current tax liability.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT), if applicable, is accounted for and credit is
recognized as an asset only if there is convincing evidence of recoverability of
MAT credit against normal tax in future years.

• Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and their corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities
(DTLs) are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets (DTAs) are recognized for deductible temporary differences, carry-forward
of unused tax losses, and carry-forward of unabsorbed depreciation to the extent
there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. However, where the
Company has carry-forward losses or unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax
assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty, supported by convincing
evidence, of realization of such assets. This stricter criterion (virtual certainty) is
applied in loss situations in accordance with AS 22. The carrying amount of



Annual Report 2024 - 25Toss The Coin Ltd    131 

deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 
extent it is no longer reasonably certain (or virtually certain, as applicable) that 
the related tax benefit will be realized; likewise, unrecognized deferred tax assets 
are reassessed and recognized to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain 
(or virtually certain) that sufficient future taxable profits will allow the DTA to be 
recovered. 

• Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related temporary differences reverse. Deferred tax is charged or
credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss, except for deferred tax arising from
adjustments to equity (for instance, deferred tax on share issue expenses that are
charged directly to securities premium, if any -such deferred tax is also adjusted
in equity). In the Balance Sheet, DTA and DTL are offset if they relate to taxes on
income levied by the same governing taxation laws and the Company has a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and liabilities.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Provisions are recognized in accordance with AS 29 -Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 
and Contingent Assets when the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a 
provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the Balance Sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present value if the 
effect of the time value of money is material, using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Examples 
of situations requiring provisions include litigations, warranties on services (if any 
contractual obligation for rework or penalties), and other claims where the conditions 
of AS 29 are met. 
When some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be 
reimbursed by another party (for example, under an insurance contract or a 
subcontractor’s responsibility), the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset 
only when it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Company 
settles the obligation. In the Statement of Profit and Loss, the expense relating to a 
provision may be presented net of the reimbursement. 
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If the Company has an onerous contract (where the unavoidable costs of meeting the 
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be 
received), a provision is recognized for the lower of the cost of fulfilling the contract 
and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfill it. 
Contingent Liabilities: A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from 
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or it is a present obligation that arises from past events but is not 
recognized because (a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation, or (b) the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the 
accounts, but are disclosed by way of a note to the financial statements, unless the 
possibility of an outflow of resources is remote. The disclosure includes an estimate 
of the financial effect, uncertainties relating to the amount or timing, and the 
possibility of any reimbursement. Common examples of contingent liabilities for the 
Company might include pending legal disputes or claims, guarantees given to third 
parties, etc., which are disclosed unless the chance of loss is remote. 
Contingent Assets: Contingent assets (possible assets that arise from past events and 
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company) are not 
recognized in the financial statements, since this may result in the recognition of 
income that may never be realized.  
However, when the realization of income is virtually certain (for instance, a favorable 
judgment in a lawsuit where the time for appeal has lapsed and the counterparty has 
the ability to pay), the related asset is not considered contingent and is recognized as 
an asset. Until then, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable, but not virtually certain. 
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with  
AS 20 -Earnings Per Share for each period for which a Statement of Profit and Loss is 
presented. 
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• Basic Earnings Per Share: Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss 
for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting any dividends 
on preference shares, if any for the period) by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of 
shares is calculated taking into account the timing of any new share issues 
(including the shares issued in the IPO) or buybacks during the period, weighted 
by the portion of the period they were outstanding. In the current year, the equity 
shares issued during the IPO have been included in the weighted average count 
from the date of their issue. Basic EPS reflects the actual equity structure in terms 
of issued shares during the period. 

• Diluted Earnings Per Share: Diluted EPS adjusts the figures used in the 
determination of basic EPS to take into account: (a) the after-tax effect of any 
interest or other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, 
and (b) the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have 
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Dilutive potential equity shares could include convertible debentures, stock 
options, warrants, etc. (if any are outstanding). For the purpose of calculating 
diluted EPS, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. If there are no dilutive instruments outstanding (as is the 
case for the Company in the reporting period), the diluted EPS is the same as 
basic EPS. All EPS figures are rounded to the nearest two decimal places as 
required by the Schedule III norms. 

• The Company had a change in its capital structure during the year due to the IPO. 
As required, EPS for the previous year (FY 2023–24) has been restated for the 
bonus element in the issue, if any, or adjusted to make it comparable, in 
accordance with AS 20. Appropriate disclosures of the EPS computations are 
provided in the notes.) 

Cash Flow Statement 
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of the 
Companies Act and in accordance with AS 3 -Cash Flow Statements. The Company 
has used the indirect method to present cash flows from operating activities, 
whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of non-cash transactions, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items 
of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. Cash flows 
are segregated into Operating, Investing, and Financing activities for presentation. 
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Cash and cash equivalents (for the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement) comprise 
cash on hand, balances in current accounts with banks, and other short-term highly 
liquid investments (such as bank deposits or money market instruments) with 
original maturities of three months or less, that are readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of change in value. 
Segment Reporting 
The Company operates in a single business segment -providing technical design and 
documentation support services -and primarily caters to clients in overseas markets. 
In the context of AS 17 (Segment Reporting), the Company’s business and 
geographical operations are considered as one reportable segment, as the risks and 
returns are predominantly similar. Hence, no separate segment information is 
provided in the financial statements. The Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(CODM) reviews the financial results at an overall company level, and therefore, for 
management reporting purposes, the Company is considered to be engaged in one 
segment. However, certain secondary segment information (e.g., revenue by location 
of customers) is disclosed as required, since the Company earns a substantial portion 
of revenue from exports. If in the future the Company diversifies into multiple lines of 
business or significantly different geographic regions, it will present segment 
information accordingly in the financial statements. 
Share Capital and IPO-related Costs 
Share Capital: Equity share capital is recorded at the face value of shares issued. Any 
premium received over the face value (issue price minus face value) on issuance of 
equity shares is recorded in the Securities Premium Account. Retained earnings 
represent accumulated profits and are shown under shareholders’ equity. If the 
Company issues any preference shares or other equity instruments, these will be 
classified in equity or liabilities according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangement (in the current year, the Company has only one class of equity shares). 
Share Issue Expenses: Expenses incurred in connection with the issue of new equity 
shares (such as IPO-related expenses including underwriting fees, merchant banker 
fees, legal and compliance costs, listing fees attributable to the new issuance, 
printing and advertisement expenses for the issue, etc.) are accounted as share issue 
expenses. In accordance with Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013, share issue 
expenses are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account (utilized from the 
premium collected on the IPO) to the extent of available balance. Such adjustment is 
made net of any tax benefits (if applicable). This accounting treatment is permitted as 
these costs are considered directly attributable to the equity transaction (issuance of 
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new shares). In the current year, the Company has adjusted the eligible IPO expenses 
against the securities premium raised through the public issue. 
Listing and Other IPO Costs: Not all costs associated with an IPO are directly 
attributable to share issuance. Costs that are primarily related to listing the existing 
shares or regulatory compliance (for example, general listing fees for the stock 
exchange, post-listing compliance costs, roadshow and marketing costs which 
promote the Company rather than the issuance, etc.) are expensed to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss as “IPO / Listing Expenses” in the year they are incurred. This 
distinction is made because share issue costs benefit the equity holders and are a 
deduction from equity, whereas other IPO-related costs are period expenses. 
The Company has provided detailed disclosures of the total IPO proceeds, utilization 
of proceeds, and a break-up of expenses incurred on the IPO (indicating how much 
was adjusted against securities premium and how much charged to P&L) in the notes 
to accounts, as required for the first financial statements after the public issue. 
The proceeds of IPO have been utilized till March 31, 2025 as per the below 
mentioned table: 

S.No Particulars 
Amt.  

(₹ in Lakhs) Utilised 

Unutilised 
Amt. (₹ in 

Lakhs) 

1 
Funding capital expenditure for 
Development of Microservices 
Application 

294.73 28.86 265.87 

2 Funding capital Expenditure for 
opening new Offices 120.00  120.00 

3 Funding Working Capital 
Requirement of our Company 200.00  200.00 

4 General Corporate Expenses 217.55  217.55 
5 Public Issue Related Expenses 85.00 85.00 0.00 

Net Issue Proceeds 917.28 113.86 803.42 
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Related Party Transactions 
Disclosure of related party relationships and transactions is made in the notes to 
accounts as per the requirements of AS 18 -Related Party Disclosures. The 
Company’s related parties include its directors, key managerial personnel, entities 
over which the above persons have significant influence, etc. However, since 
disclosure of related party transactions is not an accounting policy but rather a 
factual note, the details are presented separately in the financial statements and not 
repeated here in the summary of significant accounting policies. 
Previous Year Figures 
The financial statements (including these policies and accompanying notes) present 
figures for the current year (FY 2024–25) and comparative figures for the previous 
year (FY 2023–24). Previous year figures have been re-grouped or re-classified 
wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation. All amounts are 
represented in Indian Rupees unless otherwise indicated. Any material regrouping 
has been disclosed in the notes. 
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data or as stated)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
3 Share capital

a) Authorised
30,00,000 (March 31, 2025: 30,00,000 ; March 31, 2024: 1,50,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 300.00           15.00  

300.00           15.00  

Issued, Subscribed and paid up
18,90,000 (March 31, 2025: 18,90,000 ; March 31, 2024: 1,26,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 189.00           12.60  
Share application money pending allotment -                 -  

189.00           12.60  
b) Reconciliation of the number of shares 

Particulars

Number Value Number Value

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,26,000    12.60                  1,26,000     12.60  
Add: Shares issued during the year (Bonus Issue) 12,60,000                  126.00                -              -      
Add: Shares issued during the year (Public Issue) 5,04,000    50.40                  

Balance at the end of the year 18,90,000.00              189.00                1,26,000.00   12.60  

c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

d) Details of Bonus Shares issued during last 5 Financial years

e) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

No. of shares % of shareholding No. of shares % of shareholding
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up held by
Jayan Narayanan (Promoter) 5,54,400    29.33% 50,400        40.00%
Reshma Budhia (Promoter) 5,54,400    29.33% 50,400        40.00%
A Gothamchand 1,21,000    6.40% 11,000        8.73%

12,29,800                  65.07% 1,11,800     88.73%

f) Details of the shareholding of the promoters in the Company

Promoter name No. of shares No. of shares % of total shares
Jayan Narayanan (Promoter) 5,54,400      29.33% 50,400             40.00% -26.67%
Reshma Budhia (Promoter) 5,54,400      29.33% 50,400             40.00% -26.67%

11,08,800    58.67% 1,00,800          80.00%

As at

As at

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the 
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

March 31, 2024March 31, 2025
As at

The Company has issued bonus shares in the proportion of 10:1, i.e. 10(ten) bonus equity share of Rs.10/- each for 1(one) fully paid up equity shares which was 
allotted on 18/06/2024 on approval being received in the shareholder’s meeting held on 14/06/2024.

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
% change during the 

year% of total shares

March 31, 2024March 31, 2025
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4 Reserves and surplus

Statement of Profit and loss
Opening balance 377.03  296.51    
Add: Profit/(loss) during the year 125.51  105.72    
Add: Prior Period Provision for Gratuity (Restated) 8.59  -  
Less: Appropriation towards Proposed Equity Dividend (63.00)   (25.20)     
Less: Appropriation towards Bonus Equity Shares issued (126.00)     -  

322.13  377.03    

Securities Premium
Opening balance 47.63  47.63  
Add: Premium received during the period 866.88    -  
Less : Appropriations during the year (127.33)   -  

787.18  47.63  

Total 1,109.31                                 424.66         
Additional Disclosure:
 During the year, the Company completed its Initial Public Offer (IPO) and got listed on the SME Platform of Bombay Stock Exchange
 on 17 December 2024. The expenses incurred in connection with the public issue amounting to Rs.127.33 Lakhs have been adjusted
 against the Securities Premium Account in accordance with Section 52(2)(c) of the Companies Act 2013. These expenses primarily
 comprise merchant banker fees, registrar fees, legal fees, advertising and marketing expenses, and other incidental costs directly related
 to the issue.

5 Long-term Borrowings
Term Loan from Bank - Secured -    -  

-    -  

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
6 Deferred Tax Liabilities/Asset (Net)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

-             -  
Gross Deferred Tax Liability (A) -             -  

Deferred Tax Assets

5.56           1.58                 
Gross Deferred Tax Asset (B) 5.56           1.58                 

Total (5.56)          (1.58)                

7 Other Non-current Liabilities
Capital Creditors -             -  

-             -  

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
8 Provisions

Provision for Gratuity 14.30         13.38               0.04           -  
Provision for Tax -             -  45.14         38.24               
Total 14.30         13.38               45.18         38.24               

9 Short-term Borrowings
Current maturities of long-term debts -             -  
Loans repayable on demand - Secured -             -  
Loan from Related Party -             -  
Total -             -  

Short-term
As at

As at

Difference between book depreciation and tax depreciation & 
provision for Gratuity

Expenses provided but allowable in Income tax on Payment 
basis

Long-term
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
10 Trade Payables

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises 0.81 -          
Dues to Others 27.00 -          

27.81 - 

Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31,2025

 Less than 6 Months  6 Months - 1 Year  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
(i) MSME 0.81 -     - - - 0.81        
(ii) Others 27.00                 -     - - - 27.00      
(iii) Disputed Dues-MSME
(iv) Disputed Dues-Others
Total 27.81                 -     - - - 27.81      

Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024

 Less than 6 Months  6 Months - 1 Year  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
(i) MSME - -     - - - -          
(ii) Others - -     - - - -          
(iii) Disputed Dues-MSME - -     - - - -          
(iv) Disputed Dues-Others - -     - - - -          
Total - -     - - - -          

11 Other Current Liabilities
Statutory dues 12.29 6.85        
Advances from customers - -          
Audit Fees Payable 1.00 -          
Payable to employees 6.83 16.07      
Liability for expenses 16.96 2.05        
Total 37.08 24.97      

As at

Particulars
Outstanding for the following periods from Due Date of Payment

Particulars
Outstanding for the following periods from Due Date of Payment

12 Property, Plant and Equipment

Office Equipment Computers
Leasehold 

Improvements
Furniture & 

Fixtures
Total

Gross Block
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3.60    10.29  -    11.84     25.72   
Additions 0.36    4.38    -    0.36   5.10     
Deletions / write off -      -   -    -  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3.96    14.67  -    12.20     30.83   
Additions 7.59    40.64  -    20.58     68.81   
Deletions / write off -      0.08    -    -  0.08     
Balance as at March 31,2025 11.55  55.23  -    32.78     99.56   

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.57      6.87 -    2.99   11.43   
Additions 1.03    3.84    -    2.34   7.21     
Deletions / adjustments -      -   -    -  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2.60    10.71  -    5.32   18.64   
Additions 1.80    13.99  -    3.23   19.02   
Deletions / adjustments -      -   -    -  -   
Balance as at March 31,2025 4.40  24.70    -     8.56     37.66  

Net Block
As at March 31, 2024 1.36  3.95   -     6.87     12.19  
As at March 31, 2025 7.15    30.53  -    24.23     61.90   

Particulars

1. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Asset) since the Company has adopted cost model
as its accounting policy to an entire class of Property, Plant and Equipment.

2. As at the balance sheet date, the Company has intangible assets under development provided as a separate note.
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13 Intangible Assets under Development

Particulars Amount
Gross Block
Balance as at March 31, 2023 -    
Additions -    
Capitalization to Property, plant & equipment -    
Balance as at March 31, 2024 -    
Additions 26.84   
Capitalization to Property, plant & equipment -    
Balance as at March 31,2025 26.84   

13.1  Intangible Assets under Development ageing schedule as on March 31,2025

 Less than 1 
Year 

 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

(i) Projects in progress 26.84   -  -   -   26.84   
(ii) Projects temporarily suspended -    -  -   -   -     
Total 26.84   -  -   -   26.84   

Intangible Assets under Development ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024

 Less than 1 
Year 

 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

(i) Projects in progress -    -  -   -   -     
(ii) Projects temporarily suspended -    -  -   -   -     
Total -    -  -   -   -     

Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from Due Date of Payment

Particulars
Outstanding for the following periods from Due Date of Payment
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

14 Non-current Investments

-  -  
-   -  

15 Other Non-Current Assets
Bank Deposits (Maturing after 12months) 101.71    10.46  
Rental Advances 27.00  11.10  
Public Issue Expenses - 10.00 
Security Deposits 0.20    -  

128.91  31.56  

16 Inventories
Raw materials -  -  
Finished goods -  -  
Work-in-progress -  -  
Stores and spare parts -  -  

-   -  

17 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 3.02    5.52    
Balances with banks

-in Current accounts 205.91    244.17    
346.30    42.01  
555.23  291.70    

Other Bank Balances

325.44    20.98  
880.67  312.68    

18 Short-term Loans and Advances
Loans and advances to employees -  -  

-   -  

-Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but
less than 12 months

As at

-Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
19 Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considered good
 Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they became due for payment 16.84   13.83  

Other Receivables 173.28    98.51  
190.12    112.34   

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 0.91   -    
189.21    112.34   

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31,2025

 Less than 6 
Months 

 6 Months - 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total

(i) Undisputed - Considered Good 164.10    16.84   -  -   -   180.94   
(ii) Undisputed - Considered Doubtful -   -   9.18  -   -   9.18  
(iii) Disputed - Considered Good -   -   -  -   -   -    
(iv) Disputed - Considered Doubtful -   -   -  -   -   -    
Total 164.10    16.84   9.18  -   -   190.12   
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 0.91  
Total 189.21   

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024

 Less than 6 
Months 

 6 Months - 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total

(i) Undisputed - Considered Good 98.51   13.83   -  -   -   112.34   
(ii) Undisputed - Considered Doubtful -   -   -  -   -   -    
(iii) Disputed - Considered Good -   -   -  -   -   -    
(iv) Disputed - Considered Doubtful -   -   -  -   -   -    
Total 98.51   13.83   -  -   -   112.34   
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts -    
Total 112.34   

20 Other Current Assets March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

FOREX Card 0.29   0.66  
Advances paid to Vendors 7.82   0.05  
Balances with Government Authorities 20.34    -    
Advance Income-tax 34.75    23.11  
TDS Receivable 25.08    16.75  
TDS Under Verification 13.00    2.93  
Prepaid expenses 15.79    -    

Unbilled Revenue A/c 12.52    -    
Total 129.59    43.50  

As at

Particulars
Outstanding for the following periods from Due Date of Payment

As at

Particulars
Outstanding for the following periods from Due Date of Payment
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
21 Revenue from operations

Sale of Services
-Export Sales 524.44              285.94 
-Domestic Sales 340.42        200.25 

864.86              486.19 
Other operating revenue

-Sale of Scrap -             - 
864.86              486.19 

22 Other Income
Interest Income from fixed deposits 19.34          9.34 
Interest on IT Refund 0.02            - 

19.36                9.34 

23 Cost of Material Consumed
Raw Materials
Opening stock - - 
Add: Purchases during the year -             - 
Less: Closing Stock - - 
Consumption of stores and spare parts -             - 
Add: Direct expenses

Power and fuel -             - 
Freight Inward -             - 

Manufacturing Expenses -             - 
- - 

24 Change in Inventories of work in progress and finished goods
Opening Stock
Finished Goods - - 
Work-in-progress - - 

- - 
Less: Closing Stock
Finished Goods - - 
Work-in-progress - - 

- - 

- - 

25 Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 421.34        222.01 
Contribution to provident and other funds 10.98          7.06 
Staff welfare expenses 6.29            3.44 
Gratuity 7.93            5.88 

446.54              238.39 

26 Finance Costs
Interest expense

-On Term loans from banks -             - 
-On working capital demand loans -             - 
-On other borrowings - 0.00 

- 0.00 
Loss on Forward Contract - -

- 0.00 

For the period/year ended
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27 Other Expenses
Payment to auditors (Refer note 31) 3.75            0.50 
Advertisement 0.46            - 
Bank Charges 0.69            0.49 
Boarding & Lodging Expense 0.67            0.34 
Commission 2.50            - 
Conference Expense 30.79          2.67 
Consultancy fees 33.76          13.07 
Designing Charges 55.04          18.08 
Freight Outward 0.15            0.02 
Electricity, Fuel and Lighting Expenses 2.12            2.17 
Local Conveyances 0.74            1.13 
GST Ineligible Input 1.51            0.44 
Insurance 1.03            - 
Interest & Penalty 0.06            0.05 
Legal and professional charges 12.30          12.11 
Listing, Depository & RTA Charges 1.72            - 
Loss on sale / scrap of Assets 0.08            - 
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 1.35            3.62 
Office Expenses 5.58            1.22 
Hiring and Rental Expense 30.71          13.53 
Repairs and Maintenance

-Building 13.29          0.03 
-Machinery -             - 
-Vehicles -             - 
-Others 1.83            0.56 

Rates and Taxes 6.02            0.07 
Selling and Distribution Expenses 2.30            1.68 
Postage Expenses 0.13            0.11 
Printing and Stationery 2.39            0.62 
Subscriptions 18.28          7.34 
Telephone and Internet Charges 0.27            0.29 
Travelling Expenses 5.59            5.34 
Travelling Expenses - Foreign 9.01            20.32 
Interest on Income-tax -             - 
Provision for bad debts 0.92            - 
Miscellaneous balances written off 0.83 0.42 
Miscellaneous expenses 4.51            0.01 

250.38              106.23 
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

28 Contingent liabilities -  -    

29 Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Amount Due to Supplier 0.81 -    
Principal amount paid beyond appointed date -  -    
Interest due and payable for the year -  -    
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid -  -    

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

30 Earnings per Share
Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year 125.51  105.72  
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 15,36,510    13,86,000    
Basic earnings per share (Actuals) 8.17   7.63  
Diluted earnings per share (Actuals) 8.17   7.63  
Face value per equity share (Rs) 10.00    10.00  

31 Payments to Auditors
Statutory Audit 1.30   0.30  
Tax Audit 0.20   0.20  
Limited Review Report / Restated 2.25   -    
Other matters 2.10   -    
Reimbursements -  -    

5.85   0.50  

32 Earnings in foreign currency
Export of Services 524.44  285.94  

524.44  285.94  

33 Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Import of Services & Subscriptions payments 10.76   5.37   
Paid towards foreign travel expenses 9.01   20.32    

19.77    25.69    

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

34 Value of Imports on CIF basis
Raw Materials -  -    
Components and Spares -  -    
Capital Goods -  -    

-  -   

For the year ended

For the year ended

As at
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36 Related Party Transactions
(i) The company is jointly controlled by the following entities/individuals:

Entities / Individuals
Mr. Jayan Narayanan
Mrs. Reshma Budhia

(ii) The list of related parties as defined in the standard is given below:

Key managerial personnel (KMP)
Mr. Jayan Narayanan Director
Mrs. Reshma Budhia Director

KMP's interested concern
M/s.Creativano Proprietorship of Son of Mr.Jayan

Entities / Individuals Nature of relationship

36 Related Party Transactions (Contd.)

(iii)

A Transactions with key management personnel including directors
Key management personnel compensation
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Remuneration paid

Mr. Jayan Narayanan 32.47  17.86  
Mrs. Reshma Budhia 32.47  17.86  

Consultancy Fees paid
M/s.Creativano -   0.30  

(iv) Related party balances as at year-end:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Loans Taken -   -  
Loans Repaid -   -  
Trade Receivables -   -  

Disclosure of transactions with the related parties as defined in the standard is given below:
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37 Ratios

Numerator Denominator Numerator Denominator Numerator Denominator

1 Current Ratio Times
Current Assets / 
Current Liabilities

Current Assets Current Liabilities 1,199.47   110.07  10.90  468.52  63.21   7.41    47%

2
Debt-Equity 
Ratio

Times
Total Debt / 
Shareholder's 
Funds

Total Debt Shareholder's Funds -   1,298.31   -  -    437.26   -   0%

3
Debt Service 
Coverage 
Ratio

Times
Earnings available 
for Debt / Debt 
Service

Profit After Tax + 
Depreciation + 
Finance Costs

Interest + Principal 
Repayments

144.54    -  NA 112.93  0.00   NA 0%

4
Return on 
Equity

Percentage

Net Profit After 
Taxes / Average 
Shareholder's 
Funds

Net Profit After 
Taxes

 Average 
Shareholder's Funds

125.51    867.79  14% 105.72  397.00   27% -48%

5

Trade 
Receivables 
Turnover 
Ratio

Times
Total Sales / 
Average Trade 
Receivables

Total Sales
Average Trade 
Receivables

864.86    150.77  5.74  486.19  91.91   5.29    9%

6

Trade 
Payables 
Turnover 
Ratio

Times
Total Purchases / 
Average Trade 
Payables

Total Purchases
Average Trade 
Payables

-   13.90  -  -    -   NA 0%

7
Net Capital 
Turnover 
Ratio

Times
Net Sales / Working 
Capital

Net Sales
Current Assets - 
Current Liabilities

864.86    1,089.41   0.79  486.19  405.32   1.20    -34%

8
Net Profit 
Ratio

Percentage
Net Profit / Net 
Sales

Net Profit After 
Taxes

Net Sales 125.51    864.86  15% 105.72  486.19   22% -32%

9
Return on 
Capital 
Employed

Percentage
EBIT / Capital 
Employed

Net Profit After 
Taxes + Interest + 
Taxes

Total Assets - 
Current Liabilities

168.28    1,312.62   13% 143.38  450.64   32% -59%

10
Return on 
Investment

Percentage
Net Profit / Cost of 
Investment

Net Profit after 
taxes

Paid up Share 
Capital + Loans 
from Directors

125.51    189.00  66% 105.72  138.60   76% -13%

Explanations to variances above 25% :
1 Current Ratio - 47%  increase is mainly on account of public issue funds lying in fixed deposits, thereby increasing current assets during 2024-25.
2 Return on Equity & Return on Capital Employed - 48%  & 59%  decrease respectively is on account of fresh public issue of 504000 shares during December 2024, thereby increasing denominator.
3 Net Capital Turnover Ratio - 34%  decrease is due to increase in current assets, thereby resulting in increase of denominator and hence drop in ratio during 2024-25.
4 Net Profit Ratio - 32%  decrease observed during 2024-25 is due to rise in number of employees and their related costs.

2024-2025
Values For Apr 2023 - Mar 2024

2023-24 
% of 

Variance
Values For Apr 2024 - Mar 2025

S.No Ratio
Measured 

In
Formula

Items Included
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
38 Employee Benefits - as per AS-15

A Defined Contribution Plan
Employers Contribution to Provident Fund 10.85 6.97   

B Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity
Change in defined benefit obligation
Obligation at the beginning of the year 13.38    7.50   
Service Cost 5.93  2.65   
Interest Cost 0.46  0.28   
Benefit Paid -    -     
Past service cost (6.97)     3.41   
Actuarial (gain) or loss 1.54  (0.46)  
Obligation at the end of the year 14.34    13.38     

Change in Plan Assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value -    -     
Expected return on plan assets -    -     
Contributions -    -     
Benefits settlled (estimated) -    -     
Amount not recognised as an asset (limit in Para 59(b)) -    -     
Actuarial gain/(loss) -    -     
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value -    -     

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the 
plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -    -     
Present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the year 14.34    13.38     
(Liability)/ assets recognized in the balance sheet (14.34)   (13.38)    

Gratuity Cost for the year
Service Cost 5.93  2.65   
Interest Cost 0.46  0.28   
Expected return on plan assets -    -     
Past service cost - 3.41 
Actuarial (gain)/loss to be recognised 1.54  (0.46)  
Amount not recognised as an asset (limit in Para 59(b)) -    -     
Net gratuity cost 7.93  5.88   

Assumptions
Discount factor 7.00% 7.25%
Salary Escalation 5.00% 5.00%

For the year ended
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39 Additional statutory information
a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

i)

j)

k)

The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies 
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the year under consideration.

There are no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 
2013 during the year.

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The company has also not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company do not have any transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed 
as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during any of the years.

The Company did not trade or invest in Crypto Currency or virtual currency during the financial year. Hence, disclosures relating to it 
are not applicable.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the 
statutory period.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including the right of use assets) and intangible assets.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 
of Companies Act, 1956 except the following:

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenders.

The Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions that are secured against current assets and has filed required 
information with the lender on regular basis.
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40 Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR")

41

42

The Company has not met the criteria for CSR in the preceding financial years. Therefore, there was no amount as per section 135 of 
the Act which was required to be spent on such activities in the current financial year by the Company.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ("Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received 
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code 
will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record 
any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Pursuant to amendment in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its notification dated March 
24, 2021 the comparative figures as disclosed in these results have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them 
comparable to current year figures.

As per our report of even date
for CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 04915S/S200036

-SD- -SD- -SD- -SD-

E K Srivatsan Reshma Budhia Narayanan Jayan Pooja Jain
Partner WTD / CFO Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 225064 DIN: 08893679 DIN: 08893678 M.No: A61974

Place: Chennai Place: Chennai Place: Chennai Place: Chennai
Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025 Date: 30.05.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Toss The Coin Limited
[CIN: L72900TN2020PLC138199]
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Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This document contains statements about expected future events and the financial and operating performance of 
Toss The Coin Limited that are forward-looking in nature. By their nature, such statements require the Company to 
make certain assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties. There is a significant risk that these 
assumptions, estimates, and other forward-looking statements may not prove to be accurate.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, as various factors could cause 
actual results, performance, or achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied herein. 
Accordingly, this document should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the assumptions, 
qualifications, and risk factors set out in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of the Annual Report 
2024–25 of Toss The Coin Limited. 

https://www.instagram.com/tossthecoinpeople/?hl=en
https://in.linkedin.com/company/toss-the-coin
https://www.youtube.com/@tossthecointv
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